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| Peter Leck - Intensiva Care Unit

From: Rebecca McMahon
To: Peter Leck

Date: 17712/2004 11:34:21
Subject: Intensive Care Unit
Hello Peter,

| refer to our telephone discussion yesterday and your subsequent facsimile in relation to issues with
the Intensive Care Unit at the Bundaberg Hospital

After reviewing the documents you provided, | spoke to Michae) Schafer in relation 1o this fssue.

Both myself and Michae! ars of the view that this matter involves Issues of clinical pracfice and
competence, rather than allegations of officlal misconduct. Accordingly, as discussed yesterday, it
would be more appropriate for a suitably qualified team of medical practitioners to review the practices

of Dr Patel and the IGU generally.

Michael has confirmed my view that Gerry Fitzgerald, Chief Health Officer, will be able to provide
advice as to the manner in which this review should be conducted.

Should this review identify further evidence which raises a suspicion of official misconduct on the part
of any of the officers involved please advise me and | will reassess this matter.

If you have any further questions in relation to this matter please do not hesitate to contact me on 323
40589

Many thanks

Rebecca McMahon
A/Manager, Investigations

Audit and Operational Review Unjt
Queensland Health

Ph:  (07) 3234 1966

Fax: (07) 3234 1528

Email: rebecca_mcmahon@health qld gov au

cc " Gerry FitzGerald
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Darftn Keating - wound dehiscence repor

¢

From: Gall Aylmer

To: Keating, Darren

Date: 8/07/2008 5 32pm
Subject: woungd dehiscence report

Good afternoon

I have attached the report | have completed in regard to the recent wound dehiscences. | am pleased
to say that | have been able to exciude all but 4 of the 13 charts that were reported to me from a

number of concerned staff, including one of the medical staff.

I have discussed these cases with Dr Patel thys afternoon and as a resudt | have no further concerns.
Dr Patel admitted technique problems with (O |, and 130224 (stitch broke while in xray). His
explanations for the other 2 people were also vary regsonable.

The wound swab pathology for UR 130224 was sigrnificant ang was Staph aureus scant, and
Enterobacter cloacae 1+,

L did discuss mplementing routine swabbing of all wound dehiscence that occur, as 1s the procedure
at RBH. Dr Patel seemed happy to go along with this.

thank you for your time
Gail

Gail Aylmer

infection Control Coordinator
Bundaberg Health Service Distnct
Bundaberg Base Hospital

PO Box 34

BUNDABERG Q 4670

Ph: 41502273

Fax: 4150 2309

ce: Goodman, Glennis; Kennedy, Carolyn
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Queensland Government
Queensiand Health

Displaying Months between July, 2002 and June, 2003

Bundaberg Health Service District

Wound Dehiscence Indicator
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Data as at 18/02/2005
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[ éa-trA"ylmer Doctors donthave GERMS - - . - R .__:_ __:. Page |
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From: Rabyn Pollock

To: Gall Aylmer

Date: 25/11/2003 11 48am
Subject: Doctors don't have GERMS

Gatl, We had the delightful Dr Patel here loday atiemtping to fix a central dialysis catheter  The
nursing staff are always very strict with usint aseptic technique accessing inese catheters stenle
gloves etc  The nursing stalf mentioned to Dr Patel as he was about to access one of these hnes the
nedd for sterle gloves, handwash He refused stating"Doctors hands don't have germs ~ This jus!
151t good enought what can we do  Robyn

R
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From Gail Aylmer

To: Kealing. Darren
Date: 3/12/2003 3 37pm
Subject: Renal

hi Darren

] spoke to Robyn in renal about your meeting with Dr Patel She and the 3 staft members that
witnessed the situation obviously do not agree with Dr Patel's version of the situation, however they

are pleased you have spoken to him about this .
Just FYI because | think it should be noted, Dr Palel wisited the unit today and said that he has "had

enough of renal and he wasn't going to do 1t anymore”

Gail Aylmer

infection Conirol CNC
Bundaberg Health Service Distrct
Bundaberg Base Hospnal

PO Box 34

BUNDABERG Q 4670

Ph 41502273

Fax 4150 2309
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@:{f_l ﬁ:;rl mer -_j“_r{gatre B—rztocol )

From: Gail Aylmer

To: Carter, Martin, Palel Jayant
Date; 571172004 1 49pm

Subject: Theatre protocol

Dear Dr Palel andg Dr Carter

1, along with a number of other staff (including our microbiologist), have been concerned far some time
now about the practice of staff wearing theatre atbre outside of the theatre complex  As you arc
aware this practice extends to (but s not imiled 10) the weanng of s atbre down 1o the staff canteen
hosputal library and even outside the buildings and down the street!!

To quote Peter Collignon, ‘not wearing street clothes info theatres was one of the main dicta putin
place by Semimelwers over 100 yoars ago" ™f the same clothes © resincled atlire, are worn in
theatre, n the wards and cafetenas elc, ihen they have become effechvely streel clothes ” Peters
the Director of Infectious Diseases Unit and Microbiology Dep! at Canberra Hospital and Professor at
Canberra Climcal School, Sydney University and Austrahan National University Heis a
world-renowned expert in these areas | think you would find Peter's article of nterest - { have placed
a copy in the theatre stalf room The arlicle also supporls the recommendations in the 2004 National

. Infection Control guidelines

I was inferested to know what practices occurred in the Brisbane tertiary hospitals  Not surprnisingly atl
of these hospitals said they had a policy/protocol in place that restricled the weaning of thealre attre
outside of the theatre complex With the exception of medical staff attending an emergency in ward
areas, all staff must change out of they theatre atttire prior to leaving the theatre complex Several of
the hospitals contacted did say that had ‘difficulties’ with a number of non-comphiant staff, however

they were tooking at ways to police thts

| have discussed tis with Gail in theatre and some of the theatre stalf - so far | have had posiive
feedback | think this ts because staff know it1s the right thing te do

| have discussed this with Darren Keating who agrees very much with me - please nole, this email has
been CCed to Darren. and to Linda Muligan

I would be interested in hearing your comments  Obviously the supply of theatre allire will need 1o be
increased to cover this change in practice

On another 1s5ue, | noted today thal the bhue plastic overshoes are very nadeguate (npping swealing
etc) - I will ask Jim from slores to look at other more suitable allernatves

. regards

Gail

Gal Aytmer

Infection Conltrol CNC
Bundaberg Health Service District
Bundaberg Base Hospital

PO Box 34

BUNDABERG Q 4670

Ph 41502273

Fax 4150 2309

cec: Keating, Darren, Mulligan Linda

Ll
QHB.0003.0002 00138 )




LGail Aylmer - theatre atlire
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From: Gail Aylmet

To: Carter, Martin, Palel, Jayanl
Date: 15/11/2004 4 14pm
Subject: theatre attire

Dear Martin & Dr Patel

Further to my previous email regarding the move to stop the wearing of theatre atlire outside of the
theatre complex, | would just ike to inform you of my next steps in progressing this issue

l am assuming you do not have an issue with this plan, as neither Gail Doherty nor | have had any
feedback from you Gail also tells me that this topic did not come up at last week's theaire
management meeting | guess that Peter Colignon’s article s very clear, and that combined with the
practices in the ltertiary hospitals, it 1s all rather straightforward - t don'l see why our practices and
standards should drop just because we work outside of the capital /!

| have altached a memo that | intend to distribute 1o all staff that enter the theatre complex  This wilt
go {o all appropriate depls and lo individual medical staff | will crect signage at the exils reminding

staff of the need to change

with thanks
Gail

Galt Aylmer

Infection Control CNC
Bundaberg Health Service District
Bundaberg Base Hospital

PO Box 34

BUNDABERG Q 4670

Ph 41502273

Fox 4150 2309

cc: Doherly, Gail, Keating, Darren, Mulligan, Linda

Page 1
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MEMORANDUM

Queensland
Government
Queensland Health
To: All Medical, Nursing and Operational staff enterng Theatre Complex and
C8SD department
Copies To: Dr Darren Keating, Mrs Linda Mulligan, Dr Martin Carter, Dr Patel
From: Gail Aylmer Contact Ext 2273
No:

Infection Control CNC

Subject: Wearing of theatre attire outside of the theatre complex

The current practice of wearning theatre attre outside of the theatre complex s not acceptable and
breaches not only recommendations in the 2004 National Infection Control guidelines, but expert opihion

and current best practice within the tertiary hospilals.

To quote an eminent Australian Professor, Peter Collignon "not wearing stree! clothes nlo thealres was
one of the main dicta put in place by Semmelwers over 100 years ago” "if the same clothes, ie reslncted
altire, are worn in theatre, in the wards and cafetenas etc, then they have become effectively street

clothes”,

A number of changes need to occur to ensure this district abides by these guidelines Please note the

fallowing -
o Staff are required to change out of theatre altire when feaving the theatre complex
« Exception to this rule include medical staff atlending an emergency in ward areas thealre tax

staff transferring patients to and from the clinical areas. and CSSD staff when collecting rtems on

. ther ward rounds Taxi staff are to remove thewr over-gown and change footwear prior 10
progressing from recovery through lo the thealres

« Staff wil be permitted to go to the Day Surgery Unit as long as an over-gown is used, and fool
covers are changed on re-enlry 10 the thealtre complex

« Theatre ature will not be worn to the Base Coffee shop, staff dining room, hospital library, x-ray
etc, smoking areas or outside of the hospital builldings in general

« Parenis entering theatres must change to theatre attre (not just don an over-gown) | believe
that parents would expect to change and they would feel some comfort that all the appropnate
precautions are being taken with their children

Another practice that theatre staff are concerned with i1s the weanng of street clothes in the restricted
theatre areas, for example the main theatre corndor

Signage will be put in place to remind staff of these changes There 1s an article by Peter Colhgnon that |
recommend you to read - copigs avallable in the theatre staff room

| appreciate that staff are very busy and feel they do not have time to change, however | am confident
that all staff are aware of the need to comply with these guidelines and will make every attempt 10 do so

Gail Ayimer

infection Control CNC 15 Novemoer 2004

Ay,

1

/
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: !._Ga:l Aylnlé: Thatre Atire e -
From: Jayant Patel
To: Gail Aylmer
Date: 21/11/2004 8 D3am
Subject: Thatre Attire
Dear Gail

1 do agree with some of the comments you made in your memorandum dated 15 November regarding

' wearing thealre attire outside the theatre complex Before some one signs it as 8 policy and before we
impplement 1t as a policy several issues and practical matler to be addressed and resolved Some of
my comments are based on several studies about theatre atlire as related to "nfection control”

1 Studies have clearly shown that it an acceptable practice to leave theatre complex with scrubs for a
short patient care issues, if there 15 a cover up like white coat, gown or a jacket For longer trip outside
the theatre persan can leagve the complex with scrubs an but they should chaage (0 3 new scrub
atre before entanng the theatre comples This is currently practiced at RBH

2 High level of cross contamination occur by the staff who leave theatre area 00 often and they

should change to new scrubs every ime they enter the thealre These are mainly theatre taxing staff
. who tranport patients back ang forth several hmes a day including worman's unit. This ssue could be

best addressed by seperate “outside” and "nside” runners The rule should be uniform for all persons

involved

3 The highest level of bactenal contamination 18 related 10 the matresses and beg Ines uscd ‘or
patenls We currently bring the patients to the thealre complex in ther own beds and leave these
beds out side the lheaire room for the entire length of surgery This 18sue nead 10 be addressed by
using theatre designated (ransfer beds which can be used only for the thealre

4 Parenis of the chuldren under going general anaesthesia are accompnaying patienls durnng the
induction of anaesthesia | think i1 1s good practice to relieve anxiely both for children and parents
Also, upto two after noons 8 week, one of the theatre 1s used to perform minor procedures where
patients enter in thier street clothes If they require to change to scrubs (which | think should) we need
1o ind an area for these peopie {0 change therr attire Practice of patienls and ther family using the
staff change room 15 nol acceptable, unless every person using thealre has a designated locker

5 We need to add significant number of extra scrubs On the busy iheatre day we are running ou! o!
' the nght size scrubs on several occasions We need lo increase the available scrubs by at least 30%

8 Current disposable shoe covers currently used in the theatre are completely un-acceptable
. I hope all these issues are addressed before implementing your recommendations as a policy
Thanks for your effori in this matter

Jay Patel
Director of Surgery
Chair, Theatre Management Group

CC: Darren Kealing Gad Doherty, Linda Muligan, Mariin Carter

TRILRIN
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' Gail Aylmer - Re Thatre Aftire _
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From: Gall Aylmer

To: Jayan! Patel

Date: 22/11/2004 955am
Subject: Re Thatre Atlire

thank you for your reply Or Patel

In regard to point 1 1 would be very interested in reading the studies that you refer to | certainly have
read that doctors leaving for emergency/semi-emergency short paient care issues can lgave, covered
as you suggested and | beliave that to be the intent of my memo In regard to changing clothes on
return from a longer tnp - | am unsure of what you mean by a ‘longer inp™ | expect you mean a inp to
the ward areas and that you are not referring to a longer trip that takes in a visit to the hospital coffee

shop or exting the hospital buildings?

There is an issue with people changing on return 1o the theatre complex as mentioned by Peler
Collignon in hus article  Also, there would nat be ncrease n the use of theatre altire in the future 1f
people have always been changing on return | betieve an increase would indicate that people had

not been changing on return

RBH have faxed me a copy of their policy which 1s included in thew overall uniform policy which ciearly
says theatre attre 1s not to be worn out of the theatre complex - | have given Gail this policy As
stated previously lo you, they did say they have trouble pohcing this rule with some staff

Pomnt 2 1 agree wih you in regard 10 the theate tax staft  Thisis a difficull issue bocause of the
curcent staffing | along with @ number of theatre stalf and the taxi staff lhemselves looked at how
best to regulate this siluation - what was mentioned In the memo 15 the best solution we saw under the
current circumstances We discussed ihe need for an outsige runner, and | said that | wowd support
them in regard to infection control issues in any business case they may pul forward

You speak of the ‘hugh level of cross contamination by staff wha leave theatre too often” - ltis 15 my
point exactly but | do not believe thig just applies o the thealre lax staff - as | walk around the hospial
{and outside the hospital bulldings) | see staff wearing thealre athre in a vancty of ways

« properly attired with gown firmiy secured but with overshoes stdl on

- gown Jeft open flapping in the breeze, with overshoes still on

- na gown at all, with overshoes still on (I am appalled to say that this 1s not an uncommon sight)

These pracuces should be a huge concern 1o us all - "the percephion of the community 1s that a sloppy
dress code equates to 'sloppy’ work and infection contral practices” (Peter Colignon 2004)  Many of
our 'hospital' commuruty have expressed therr concerns to me - a group of staff actually applauded me

for doing something about this

Pont 3 | agree wilth you and this was discussed It was recognised thal our pract:ces MUST be
reviewed and 1t was decided that Gail (oherly, Raelene McDermid in CSSD and | would contact ather
facihties to find out ther prachice | expect the use of theatre designated beds will be the oulceme as

you sugges!

Point 4 | am not suggesting the parents not be allowed in lo theatre 10 be with therr chidren durning
mduction What | am saying 15 that they need o change first  As a parent I would expect 10 charige
clean clothes 10 go into a thealre s | am sure most paople would regard this as a clean environment’
As | said In my memo, a parent would be comforted that all care was being taken  Perhaps the

pargnis and munor ops people could change n DSU’/’
Point 5 | have asked John Lee to monitor the theatre altre usage and to order more as approprnale

Point 6 As you are aware from an earker email | have contacted the Purchasing Officer i regarc to
this matter, and have asked him to source an allernative product o be tnalied He did state that he
was not aware there was a problem as he had not received any complaints re same

[ was aware that everyone except for Martin (who 1s away). had opened thexr email prior tu me
distributing the memo 1o staff

Page t
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AUDIT & OPERATIONAL REVIEW BRANCH
FILE NOTE

File No, Al5
District Bundaberg Health Service District

Subject INTENSIVE CARE UNIT

Type TELEPHONE CONVERSATION
Date 17 December 2004

Time 945AM

Officer MCMAHON

Comments ~ Details

. Phone call from Peter Leck, Manager, Bundaberg Health Service District

. He advised that he had received a formal written complaint from the Nurse Unit Manager
of the ICU,

. He stated that the complamt related to the clinical practices of Dr Partell, Director of

Surgery n the ICU. In particular, that he had poor oulcomes from surgery, including

deaths and that he was keeping patients in ICU when they should be transferred-out of

the District (to a larger hospital). e

He stated that he had made some prelimmnary inquinies and staff had supported this

complaint with vague statements and concerns. At this stage they had found no clear

evidence to suggest that his surgical practices are inappropriate.

He stated that it should be noted that there 15 a significant personality conflict between the

Director of Surgery and the NUM, to the poinl where the two officers don't speak to each

other.

He stated that the District needed to handle this carefully as Dr Partell was of greal benefit

to the District and they would hate to lose his services as a result of this complamnt.

Appaiently there 1s some dissatsfaction amongst the local doctors because Dr Partell was

recently given a university appointment that they felt should have gone to a local doctor.

te stated that he was proposing to deal with the complaint by doing a clinical review of

the procedures in the ICU generally. He stated that he had spoken with Mark Matuissi,

who had suggested Dr Alan Mohoney, an Anaethestist Intensivist at Redcliffe,

Caboolture
He had also spoken with Mary Montgomery who had agreed to release him to do ths

1eview
He stated that he was contacting Audit in order to see if we had an interest in this matter

[ stated that based on the infoimation he had provided, this complaint involved chnical
practice issues, rather than official misconduct 1 explained that to the best of my
[ knowledge these issues would be reviewed by clinicians (who were qualified to form

“

B Prepared
by:
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A
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AUDIT & OPERATIONAL REVIEW BRANCH
INTERNAL INVESTIGATIONS & SPECIAL PROJECTS UNIT

FILE NOTE

Comments — Defails

assessments as to the appropriateness of another medical practinoner's work practices I
explained that in the past these reviews had been conducted by the Chief Health Officer.

o Peter stated that he was not aware that the CHO did this type of review

¢ Istated that I would speak further with Michael Schafer in relation to this matter, but that
[ suspected he would agree with my view that the CHO should handle this issue.

4 00pm - Phone ¢all to Michael Schafer.
+  Advised hum of the detals of the complaint He agreed with my view that this issuc
should be handled by the CHO
¢ We agreed that | would email Peter Leck and advise him that given that this complaint
‘ mvolved the chimecal practices of the ICU, m particular one medical practiioner, rather
‘ than allegations of OM, he should seck advice from the CIO as to the best manner in
which to review the unit
. Agreed that I should CC this to Gerry Fitzgerald

— [ —— ]

6 V\AOR\ Audit \Internal Investigations’\ Special Page 2
Investigations|General Inves tigotions datalAl5\File
NoteLeck 16 12 04 doc
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[ Gerry FizBerald - Intensive Card Unit T R TR
From: Rebecca McMahon
To: Peter Leck
Date: 17/12/2004 10:30 59 am
Subject: intensive Care Unit
Helio Peter,

I refer to our telephone discussion yesterday and your subsequent facsimile in relation to issues with
the Intensive Care Unit at the Bundaberg Hospital

After reviewing the documents you provided, | spake to Michael Schafer in relation to this issue

Both myself and Michael are of the view that this matter involves 1ssues of chinical practice and
competence, rather than allegations of official misconduct Accordingly, as discussed yesterday, 6t.
would be more appropriate for a suitably qualfied team of medical practitioners to review the praclices

of Dr Patel and the ICU generally.

Michae! has confirmed my view thal Gerry Fitzgerald, Chief Health Officer, will be able to provide
advice as lo the manner in which this review should be conducted

Should this review identify further evidence which raises a suspicion of official misconduct on the pant
of any of the officers involved please advise me and | will reassess this matter

If you have any further questions in relation to this matter please do not hasitate to contact me on 323
40589,

Many thanks

Reboecca McMahon

AManager, Investigations

Audit and Operational Review Unit
Queensland Health

Ph. (07)3234 1966

Fax: (07)3234 1528

Email rebecca_memahon@health.gld gov.au

ce: Gerry FitzGerald

Podon [ecke = DA - Wbua.g.

R THL
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Page 1 of 1

Gerry FitzGerald - Intensive Care Unit

Ry

<o e pret s ey Ty

From: ahon
To: ( Peter Leck ) @M .
Date: “Y77T2/2004 10:30 AM P

Subject; Intensive Care Unit
cc: Gerry FitzGerald

Hello Peter,

I refer to our telephone discussion yesterday and your subsequent facsimile in relation to 1ssues with the
Intensive Care Unit at the Bundaberg Hospital.

After reviewing the documents you provided, I spake to Michael Schafer in relation to this Issue.

Both myself and Michael are of the view that this matter involves issues, of chnical practice and competence,
rather than allegations of official misconduct. Accordingly, as discussed yesterday, 1t would be more
appropriate for a suitably qualified team of medical practitioners to review the practices of Dr Patel and the

1CU generally,

Michael has confirmed my view that Gerry Fitzgerald, Chief Health Officer, will be able to provide advice as to
the manner In which this review should be conducted.

Should this review idenufy further evidence which ralses a suspicion of official misconduct on the part of any
of the officers involved please advise me and I will reassess this matter,

If you have any further questions in relation to this matter please do not hesitate to contact me on 323
40589.

Many thanks

Rebecca McMahon

A/Manager, Investigations

Audit and Operational Review Unit
Queensland Health

Ph;  (07) 3234 1966 I . ﬁ;
Fax:  (07) 3234 1528 Qs S enlcn lo

Email: rebecca_memahon@bhealth.gld.gov .au N

it

&

O
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¥ 16.DEC.2RA4  11:21 EXECUTLVE ShRVILES A U BRO s
: " EXECLITIVE SERVICES
P FAX MESSAGE
]
Bundaberg Health Service District
Queensland PO Box 34 .
M
Government BunpBerG @ 4670 ({INFIDENTIAL
Queenstand Health
TO: Fax: 32341528 FROM: Fax; 41502028
Name: Rebecca MeMahon Phone: 41802025
Organigation: Acting Manager, Name; Peler Leck
Investigations,
Audit & Operaficnal Review
Unit
Date: 16/12/04 Position: _Diatrict Manager

CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION

i SUBJECT: Documents
L

Pages 7 {Inclusiva)

e —— A — o ———

Dear Rebececa

‘Please find enclosed documents as per our telephene conversation of today.

Yours faithfully

|

}
Peter Leck f
District Manager !

This facsimile s 3 canfidential communkeation betwaen the sender and the addroasee. The contents may aiad bo protectad by legislation as
they relate i health service matters, Newther the confidentiality nor any othar protesiion atteching la this fz?esﬁ'ni!e Is walvad, loat or destreyed by
raagon hat it has been mnistakanty rangmitted 10 a porson of entlty other than the sddreasce. The use, distlosure, topying or distribulion of any
of the contents (8 prohibited. if you are net the addreases plesse nobfy the ssnder Immediately by teisphone or facsimile number provided

sbove and return the facsimils Lo us by post al our sxpense.
i you do nol recejve all of the poges, or 1 yau have any difficulty with the tansmission, pisasa notlily the sandar,

s

T
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‘ Dear Peter,

16.DEC.€WB4 11322 eXECUTIVE SERVILEL & MBS et
b EXECUTIVE SERVICES

22 October 2004

Peter Leck,

District Manager,
Bundaberg Base Hospital,
P.Q Box 34.

Bundaberg 4670.

I am wniting to you to officially inform you, of the concerns I have for the
gatzcntsl in ICU in relation to the behaviour and clinical competence of one of the surgeons,

r Patel
. Dr Patel first voiced his displeasure with the ICU around the 19 May 2003, A
patient UR number 034546 came to the ICU post oesophagectomy. This patient had multiple
comorbities and for the last 45 minutes of surgery, had no obtainable Blood pressure The
anacsthetist who accompanied him into the ICU, stated “ It was s very expensive way to die
He required 25ug of Adrenaline and 100% (2. Dr Patel stated the patient was stable. The
Nursing staff who were communicating with the patients famuly told the patients mother that
he was extremely ill. Indeed he progressed to brain death Dr Patel continiued to say the
patient was stable The course of treatment for this patient was very difficult, he required
dialysis and there was constant conflict between the anaesthetists, Dr Patel and the Physicians
about hig care. The Director of Anacsthetics and ICU was away and Dr Younis was left in
charge, he was reluctant to question whether or not we should be domg such large operations
here at BBH. Dr Jon Joiner and I went to see Dr Keating to volce our concerns. We both
belicved we could not offer adequate post op care for oesophagectomias The literature stated
a hospital should be doing at least 30 per year to maximuse outcomes, At this time I first
stated my concem that Dr Patel could describe & patient on maximum Inotropes and
ventilation as stable. I voiced these concerns 1o Dr Keating After this incident Dr Patel and |
had a conversation where I told him that the ICU wished to have a good professional working
relationship with him, I tried 1o tell him that we were 2 Jevel one ICU and that our staffing
levels and scope of practice meant that we could only keep ventilated patients for 24-48 hrs
before transferring thern to Brisbane, Dr Patel stated that he would not practice medicine like
this end he would go to “Peter Leck and Darren Keating and care for his own patients.” This
incident was repeated relatively soon sfler the first. Dr Patel would threaten the staff with his
resignation when it was suggested it was time to transfer out a ventilated patient He
continually stated he was working in the ¥ third world” here. He would use “Peter Lecks™ and
“Darren Keatings” names as a type of intimidation and threat to the staff, He stated on several
occasions he would go straight to Peter Leck as he had made him “ half a million dollars this
year. Every time we had a ventilated patient in the ICU that required inotropes he would
argue with the anaesthetists about which inotrope to use. His choice of motropes did not
reflect best practice guidelines {n Australia. He refused to speak to the writer, (myself). All
requests for a bed would go through either another nurse or doctor. He would yell and speak
in 8 very loud voice, denigrating the ICU and myself and at times the anaesthetists, The
nursing staff felt they were often the ** rneat in the sandwich” He would harass them and ask
them ** Whose side they were on”. At times he would actively try to denigrate my ability as a
NUM to the nursing staff and other doctors. (See attached documentatian).

2
IR
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lb.Ueb,ced 11122 EXECUTIVE SERVICES & NO. 848 F.3s¢
EXECUTIVE SERVICES

Soon after Dr Patel started operating here the nursing staff observed a high complication rate
amongst the patients. Severs! patients had wound dehiscencs and several experienced
perforatons, This is a list of patients I belicve require formal {nvestigation. This is taken from
our ICU stats and are not a full and comprehensive review as there are no stats from OT or
Surgical Ward,

UR 130224 6/6/03 post op oesophagectomy

12/6/03 wound dehiscence.

15/6/03 2™ wound dehiscence

suffered a third wound dehiscence was transferred to Brisbane on the 20/6,
had a J tube leak and peritonitis. A bed had been obtained earlier for this man, but Dr Patel

' went up to Dr Keating who sdvised our anacsthetust to keep hum for a fow more days, 1n

which time the bed was taken, and he stayed several more days whilst another bed was
sourced. The Doctors at RBH questioned why we were doing such surgery here when we
were unable to care for these patients.

(‘J v ks post op oesophagectomy ventilated for 302 hrs.

. i Ventilated for many days: transferred to Brisbane afer many arguments in the
| ICU with DR Patel who refused initially to transfer this patient,
e 1+ issue with transferring patient to Brisbane.
@11 ) Bowel Obstruction Resection and Anastomosis on 7/2/04 T/F to Brisbane
on the 11/2/u4 on the 12/2/04 laparotomy showed perforation and peritoneal soiling.
{ Wound Dehiscence and complete evisceration 8/4/04. Booked for sigmoid
colectomy ana round to have ovarian ¢a.
UR 020609 27/4 Wound dehiscence.

UR 29/6 Insertion of Vascath perforated & 7.
UR 086644. Delay in Transfer to Brisbene , See attached repont, Pt died.

Ha. 10/7 laparotomy for Ventral Hernia, developed haematoma in ward and
atternpted evacuation done without any analgesia Drs notes consistently say patient well
when Pt was experiencing large amounts of pain and wound ooze

V| pthad Whipples , death cert stated he died of Klebsiella pneumonia and
inactivity '

' death cert stated pt died of malnutrition. Had been operated on 31/7/04.
Several conversations were had with other doctors , Acting Directors of Nursing and NUMs,

. Dy Miach refused to allow Dr Pate] to care for his patients as he stated he had 100%

‘ complication rate with Peritoneal Dialysis inscrtion. This was stated in 2 Medical Services
forum as well as in a private conversation with myself, This data was shown to the Acting
Director of Nursing Mr. Patrick Martin,
On the 27° July 2004, Pt UR number 086644 returned to ICU in Extremis with & chest mjury,
The events of thesel 3 hrs is well documented. Dr Patel interfered in the arranged transfer of
thig patient to Brisbane and the patient died after it was thought the retnieval team were on
there way to retrieve this patient The subsequent events of this intervention and the traumatic
pericardial tap ( described by the nurse caring for the patient as repeated stabbing
motuons)resulted in the ICU staff requesting advice from the nurses union  The stafT involved
in this sitnation described it ag the worst they had ever seen. They were acutely distressed. An
attempt was made to seek EAS support, but they were unable to assist due to their workload.
One staff member accessed Psychological support privately. T was requestad 30 filling
sentinal gvent form , by the then QI Manager Dr Jane Truscott. The avents of this incident
were discussed at length with the union, who offered support to the staff. They also offered
me several ways I could report the Jong standing concerns I had with the current situstion in-
ICU. The day after the patients death , when I thought he hed safely been transferred to
Brisbane . Dr Strehan came to talk to me i the office and found me very distressed, He
offered 1o talk to somie of the other doctors and get back to me as the representative of the
AMA in Bundaberg. He did this stating * there is widespread concern, but at the moment no-

T R
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EXECUTIVE SERVICES

one is willing to stick their neck out” He urged me to keep stats on my concerns. [ spoke with
Dr Dicter Berens and informed him the nursing staff were going to report their concerns with
Dr Patel to an official source. He stated he would support us , by telling the truth, but he was
concomed he would lose his job and Dr Patel would be the one left behind It1s widely
believed amongst the medical and nursing staff that Dr Patel was very powerful, that he was
wholeheartedly supported by Peter Leck and Darren Keating and was untouchable, Anyone
who tried to alert the autharities about their concerns would lose their jobs. This perception
was indeed perpetrated by Dr Patel on a daily basis. Many of the residents and PHOs have
expressed their concerns, Dr Alex Davis, and Dr David Riszon, But were unsure of what to do
because of the widespread belief Dr Patel wus protected by executive.

The Nurses umon have offered advice 1n that there are several ways these concems
can be reported if not dealt with internally, atter my conversation with Peter Leck and Linda
Mulligan on Wed, I believe they were not in receipt of the full concerns, but now that they are
they will deal with them.

Dr Miach has reiterared he has dealt with the issue by not letting Dr Patel near his
patients, These concemns were openly discussed at the medical services forum

A peripheral concem is the reports the junior doctors have voiced about forms not
being filled out correctly, of being tald not to use certain words in discharge summaries, and

various other chart irregularities 7; Ml‘ (JO Ve G
‘Toni Hoffrman

Documeritation from Karen Stumer,Karen Fox, Kay Boisen x2, Karen Jenner , Vivienne
Tapiolas included. ‘

7]
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EXECUTIVE SERVICES
CONFIDENTYAL

Notes of Mesting - 5 Nov 814

Present ;

Dr Martin Strahan - VMO Gen Medicme - BRH
Mr Peter Leck —~ DM BHSD
Dr Darren Keating - DMS BHSD

Context :

Ms Tont Hoffman NUM ICU/CCU bas made a number of allegations against Dr Jayant Patel,
Director of Surgery BBH, meluding some alleganons about his chmical competence. Dr
Strahan wes asked to provide any comment mn relation to these allegations because Ms
Hoffman bad named him as one doctor who shared similar concerns.

Response ;

Dr Strahan outlined a case where a woman from Biggenden was referred to him for
investigation of abdomina) pian - He performed 8 gastroscopy on the woman finding
obstruction in the 2™ part of the duodenum and was unable to advaace the scope any further,
despite multiple attempts After the procedure the woman experienced ongoing abdominal
pain (? perforation). so was referred to BBH and seen by Dr Patel. A CT scan was performed
and reported to Dr Strahan as showing dye in the abdommal cavity. He reviewed the films
and believed the dye showed s nephrogram. Nevertheless Dr Patel operated and found
carcinoma of the pancreas (which was confirmed as adenocarcinoma by biopsies taken at time
of endoscopy) Dr Strahan believed this case showed Dr Pate] was rigid in his thinking and
Jjudgement being unwilling to be flexible as new evidence came o hand. This lady was sent
home and reumed for 8 Whipples operation. Unfortunately she died several days after the
operation. He also questioned whether the Whipples operation should be done in Bundaberg.
whilst acknowledging most spectalists (inc humself) in regional areas may have kept patients
too long before referring to metropolitan hospitals.

Dr Strahan believed that Dr Pate] had an aggressive and assertive personality, but had he had
kept his distance from Dr Patel. Dr Strahan noted that the local gpecialists felt Dr Patel had
arrived from the US, been appointed as Director of Surgery and given sppropriste authority
supported by management, which he had used to reduce surgical waiting lists, However he

appearzd o operate without some form of peer review, He was seen as a self declared expert
from the 1" world here to help the 3" world of Bundabers, The local specialists saw him ag ‘a
Johnny come lately” who had been given the ‘ingide runnimg by management’ with ¢oncerns
held by the specialists gver his uiversity appointment and appointment to the Jocal Oncology

committes,

r Darren Keating ™S
DMS,. -

"

CONFIDENTIAL &
| Iy

QHB.0003.0002.00175
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EXECUTIVE SERVICES
CONFIDENTIAL

Notes of Meeting — 2 Nov 04

Present :

Dr David Risson ~PHO (PGY3) - BRH
Mr Peter Leck ~ DM BHSD
Dr Darren Keating - DMS BHSD

Context :

Ms Toni Hoffman NUM ICU/CCU has mede & number of allegations against Dr Jayant Patel,
Dircctor of Surgery BBH, including some allegations about his clinical competence. Dr
Risson was asked to provide any comment in relation to these allegations because Ms
Hoffman had narned him as one doctor who shared sumilar concerns.

Response :

Dr Risson’s concems related to cansparency of the current surgica] audit process conducted
in the Surgical Department, where he believed there was lack of structure. He was concerned
that upon cessation of use of the Otago database, there weren't reasons provided about the
change nor an adequate replacement put n place. He had concern (which was shared by
nursing staff) about the apparent number of post-operatve compheations including infection.

Ms Hoffman had spoken to Dr Russon about the care of Mr Bramich but he wasn’t involved in
the care of this patient and couldn’t comment He did remember hearing about one case
whers msertion of a CVP line by Dr Patel had possibly pierced the SVC, leading to
pencardial tamponade and patient death. Dr Risson was involved in getting consent for the
procedure from the patients, but badn't observed the procedure,

Dr Risson described his relationship with Dr Patel a5 amicable noting that he could be flighty
and occasionally unpredictable. The resident staff believed that he was very severe in

reprimands, particularly for minor issues.

Dr Risson had never been told to not write anything on a discharge summary and had attended
a Surgical Department meeting where wound dehisctence and superficial mfection had been

discussed

-
~ -

Dr Darren Keatx?xé"'*\
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Notes of Meeting - 29 Qct 04

Present :

Dr Dieter Berens — Specialist Anaesthetist BBH
Mr Peter Lock ~ DM BHSD
Dt Darren Keating - DMS BHSD

Context .

Ms Toni Hoffman NUM ICU/CCU has made & number of allegations against Dr Jayant Patel,
Drrector of Surgery BBH, including some allegations about his clinical competence, Dr
Berens was asked to provide any comment in relation to these allegations because Ms
Hoffman had named him a3 one doctor who shared similar concerns.

Response :

Dr Berens noted that he could only talk about arcas that crossed over with Dr Patel, being
primarily care of ICU patients He believed that Dr Patel’s critical care knowledge was not
up-to-date in relation to choice of some drugs and fluids plus application of some physiology
principles to care of critically ilj patents. He remembered 2 cages related to his concerns. He
acknowledged that he was aware of a difficult working relationship between Dr Patel and

gome ICU nursas,

As an anaesthetist, Dr Berens noted that Dr Patel’s manual skills were very good and that
patients being admitted to BBH (and ICU) were older and sicker than several years ago, when
he was previously employed at BBH He questioned Dr Patel's judgement to undertake some
procedures (¢ g. vascular, Whipples), with regard to his currency in doing such procedures.
In one case of placement of a gastrostomy tube, he had concerns about the control of the

trochar,

He believed that Dr Patel's attitude to other professionals made him hard to work with on
occesions.  He felt that Dr Patel made categorical statements, didn't appear flexible and
wouldn't discuss alternative clinical options. Dr Berens believed that Dr Patel appeared
reluctant to admit to other doctors his own mistake or ervor in care of patients, He didn't
appear to be completely sccountable and honest about his surgical actions.

Dr Berens noted that Dr Patel could be short with his resident staff (while scknowledging that
most senior doctors had been short with residents at different times) and had a reasonable
working relationship with nursing staff in theatre He believed he could continue to work
with Dr Patel in the future

™l
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!.Smﬁz:@wgral_g; Intensive Care Ut ) . . ‘ e Page
From; Rebecca McMahon
To: Peter Leck
Date; 1741212004 10 30 59 am
Subject: Intensive Care Unit
Heflo Peter,

[ refer to our telephone discussion yesterday and your subsequent facsimile i relabion io 1ssues with
the Intensive Care Unit at the Bundaberg Hospital

Alter reviewing the documents you provided, | spoke to Michae!l Schafer in relation to this 1ssue

Both myself and Michael are of the view that this matler involves issues of clinical practice and
competence, rather than allegations of official misconduct. Accordingly, as discussed vesterday, it
would be more appropriate for a suitably qualfied team of medical practitioners to review the practices

of Dr Patel and the ICU generally

Michael has confirmed my view that Gerry Fitzgerald, Chief Health Officer, will be able to provide
advice as to the manner in which this review should be conducted

. Should this review identify further evidence which raises a suspicion of official misconduct on the part
of any of the officers involved please advise me and | will reassess this matier.

It you have any further questions in relation to this matter please do not hesitate 1o contact me on 323
40589

Many thanks

Rebecca McMahon

A/Manager, Investigations

Audit and Operational Review Untt
Queensland Health

Ph (D7) 3234 1966

Fax: (07) 3234 1528

Email. rebecca_memahon@heaith gid gov au

. cC: Gerry FitzGeraid

AU
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FILE NOTE

Meeting of Toni Hoffman, Linda Mulligan and Peter Leck
20 October 2004 — 3.30pm

Peter Leck began meeting by thanking Toni for her time and advising that any issues
raised would be followed through. Tom indicated that she had a number of concerns
about paticnt safety relating to Dr Patel  She outlined them:

Patient Safety

1

2)

3)

» Concerns re what constitutes a stable patient. Oesphagectomy.

Dr Patel had writlen in notes patient was stable but was in fact brain dead.

Concerns that we were doing things outside scope of practice. When
looking at transferring patient — Dr Patel threatened to resign.

Funding used as a threat — made $500k for Director of Medical Services
and District Manager if we couldn’t guarantee to provide care he would
resign. Beds in Brisbane would be booked but patients not transferred.
He alienated anaesthetists so that every day there was a fight in unit about
management of patients.

Constantly denigrate ICU - describes it as third world,

Dr Patel very old fashioned in types of drugs used Nursing staff caught in
middle between anaesthetists and himself.

Followed a nursing staff member around and kept at her, harassing her.
When questioned about appropriateness of complexity of surgery (eg
thoracotomy) said it was something else eg wedge resection of lung and
that you have to do a thoractomy anyway for this.

Mr Bramich - Dr Patel said wasn’t sick enough to go to Brisbane — then -
became too sick to go to Brisbane and patient died

Pericardial tap - no evidence on echo that required. Coroner’s review
showed traumatic damage to heart on autopsy.

Ttis was final straw — 9 year old daughter watched her father die. Dr Patel
screamed at patient’s wife not to cry.

Dr Strahan visited me afler Mr Bramich's death and I explained my
concemns. He said he was in AMA and would talk to other doctors. He
came back and said doctors had concerns but did not have cnough to stick
their necks out with.

Dr Maach said won’t let Dr Patel near him nor his patients

Jon Joiner and [ have seen Datren

Gai] Aylmer and Robyn Pollock been to see Darren about lack of
handwashing.

Nursing staff involved in Mr Bramich’s care contacted QNU. Nurses
wanted 1t to be a coroner’s case. QNU have said that they can take it to
DG or nurses could seek whistleblower status and contact HRC or CMC.

HEHCEIRN
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Approached Jenny Church but said won’t fill in adverse events forms.
Saw Di Jenkin - she not filling in forms, and said “what is the point”.
Dieter said wouldn’t pursue as he might be one to lose job.

Dawvid Risson has concerns.
Heard second hand that Dr Patel told junior doctors not o use certain
words in discharge summaries so that issues not picked up.

Wound dehiscence — not all being reported.

['didn’t want anyone to come and die in unit because he stops transferring paticnts.

And I think he is working outside scope of practice ~ Dr Miach openly questioned his
qualifications and he has pushed us too far. We are working outside scope of

practice.

Dr Miach said he managed situation by not allowing Dr Patel to go near his patients.

Mr Bramich - they may come back and said he would die anyway — but that isn’t the
point. It was about him interfering in process that would have got patient 1o Brishane

in the time for him to have the best chance.

Am quite happy to be proven wrong.

Want independent assurance outside of Bundaberg that night things being done.

los> Ao,
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CONFIDENTIAL

Notes of Meeting ~ 5 Nov 04

Present ;

Dr Martin Strahan ~ VMO Gen Medicine - BBH
Mr Peter Leck - DM BHSD
Dr Darren Keaung - DMS BHSD

Context .

Ms Toni Hoffman NUM ICU/CCU has made a number of allegations against Dr Jayant Patel,
Director of Surgery BBH, including some allegations about his clintcal competence. Dr
Strahan was asked to provide any comment in relation to these allegations because Ms
Hoffman had named him as one doctor who shared similar concerns

Response :

Dr Strahan outhned a case where a woman from Biggenden was referred to him for
investigation of abdomunal pian. He performed a gastroscopy on the woman finding
obstruction in the 2™ part of the duodenum and was unable to advance the scope any further,
despite multiple attempts After the procedure the woman experienced ongoing abdominal
pain (? perforation), so was referred to BBH and seen by Dr Patel. A CT scan was performed
and reported to Dr Strahan as showing dye 1 the abdominal cavity He reviewed the films
and beheved the dye showed a nephrogram. Nevertheless Dr Patel operated and found
carcinoma of the pancreas (which was confirmed as adenocarcinoma by biopsies taken at ime
of endoscopy) 'Dr Strahan believed this case showed Dr Pate] was nigid in his thinking and
judgement being unwilling to be flexible as new evidence came to hand. This lady was sent
home and retumed for 2 Whipples operation  Unfortunately she died several days afler the
operation. He also questioned whether the Whipples operation should be done 1n Bundaberg,
whilst acknowledging most specialists (inc lumself) in regional areas may have kept patients

too long before referning to metropolitan hospitals.

Dr Strahan beheved that Dr Patel had an aggressive and assertive personality, but had he had
kept his distance from Dr Patel. Dr Strahan noted that the local specialists felt Dr Patel had
arnved from the US, been appointed as Director of Surgery and given appropriate authonty
supported by management, which he had used to reduce surgical waiting hists. However he
appeared to operate without some form of peer review. He was seen as a self declared expert
from the 1" world here to help the 3™ world of Bundaberg The local specialists saw him as ‘a
Johnny come lately’ who had been given the ‘mside running by management’ with concerng
held by the specialists over his university appointment and appomtment to the local Oncology

commtiee.
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CONFIDENTIAL

Notes of Meeting - 29 Oct 04

Present :

Dr Dieter Berens - Speciatist Anaesthetist BBH
Mr Peter Leck - DM BHSD
Dr Darren Keating - DMS BHSD

Context -

Ms Toni Hoffman NUM ICU/CCU has made a number of allegations agamst Dr Jayant Patel,
Director of Surgery BBH, including some allegations about his chinical competence. Dr
Berens was asked to provide any comment 1n relation to these allegations because Ms
Hoffman had named him as one doctor who shared sirmlar concerns.

Response :

Dr Berens noted that he counld only talk about areas that crossed over with Dr Patel, bemng
primanly care of ICU patients. He believed that Dr Patel’s critical care knowledge was not
up-to-date 1n relatton to chotce of some drugs and fluids plus application of some phystology
principles to care of critically 1l patients. He remembered 2 cases related to his concerns. He
acknowledged that he was aware of a difficult working relationship between Dr Patel and

some ICU nurses

As an anaesthetist, Dr Berens noted that Dr Patel’s manual skills were very good ang that
patients being admitted to BBH (and ICU) were older and sicker than several years ago, when
he was previously employed at BBH He questioned Dr Patel’s judgement to undertake some
procedures (e g vascular, Whipples), with regard to his currency i doing such procedures.
In one case of placement of a gastrostomy tube, he had concerns about the control of the

trochar

He believed that Dr Patel’s attitude to other professionals made him hard to work with on
occasions.  He felt that Dr Patel made categorical statements, didn' appear flexible and
wouldn’t discuss alternative chinscal options. Dr Berens believed that Dr Patel appeared
reluctant to admit to other doctors his own mistake of error in care of pahents. He didn’t
appear to be completely accountable and honest about his surgical actions. ‘

Dr Berens noted that Dr Patel could be short with his resident staft (while acknowledging that
most sentor doctors had been short with residents at different times) and had a reasonable
working relationship with nursing staff 1n theatre. He beheved he could continue to work

with Dr Patel in the future,
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ater Leck - Intensive Care Unit

From: Rebecca McMahon
To: Peter Leck

Date: 1714212004 11:34 21
Subject: Intensive Care Unit
Hello Peter,

Page 1
A TTACA 2 IS

>

| refer 10 our telephone discussion yesterday and your subsequent facsimile in relation to 1ssues with

the Intensive Care Unit at the Bundaberg Hospital.

After reviewing the documents you provided, | spoke 1o Michael Schafer in refation to this issue

Both myself and Michael are of the view that this matier involves 1ssues of clinical practice and
competence, rather than allegations of official misconduct Accordingly, as discussed yesterday, it

would be more approprate for a sulably qualfied team of medical practitioners to review the

practices of Dr Patel and the ICU generally.

Michael has confirmed my view that Gerry Fitzgerald, Chief Heauh Officer, will be able 1o provide
advice as to the manner in which this review should be conducted.

Should this raview identify further evidence which raises a suspicion of official misconduct on the part

of any of the officers involved please advise me and | will reassess this matier.

If you have any further questions in relation to this matter please do not hesitate to contact me on 323

40689,
Many thanks

Rebecca McMahon

A/Manager, Investigations

Audit and Operational Review Umnit
Queensland Health

Ph:  (07)3234 1966

Fax: (07)3234 1528

Emaill rebecca_mcmahon@bealth gid gov au

CC: Gerry FitzGerald
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4 January 2005 e Al T -

Michelle Hunter il
Acting Clinical Nurse

Surgical Ward

Bundaberg Health Service

Lynds Mulligan GGNFIUEN nAj_

Director of Nursing
Bundaberg Health Service

Dear Lynda

)
I would like to express my grave concern about a recent patient | (o .

5\,@ had a motorbike accident on 23/12/04 and sustained a
laceration to his left groin area. He was subsequently taken to theatre on arrival to DEM |
and had a femoral vein repair and debridement/washout and wound closure. At the time
of this surgery his femoral artery was intact. 1.l was admitted to ICU intubated
post op and a few hours later had to return to theatre with a pulseless left leg and he had
fasciotomies performed to his thigh and lower leg. Again he returned to ICU for a few
hours and then again went back to theatre with acute ischaemia to his left leg despite the
fasciotomies. He had an exploration and arteriotomy with a Gortex bypass graft. My
dealings with 1° L started on the 30 December when I looked after him on an
evening shift. He had recently been transferred to the ward from ICU. My assessment of
Plo  showed he was tachycardic, febrile and his left leg was grossly swollen and
- oozing very large amounts of serous ooze. His Left foot was purple and mottled to the
ankle, he bad a Posterior Tibial pulse on Doppler but no Dorsalis pedis pulse. He was
unable to move his leg, was cold from the ankle down and had very patchy sensation.,
This information was made available to the Doctors on duty that afternoon.

I did not look after F(o - again but was team leader for other shifts in which he was an
inpatient in the surgical ward. Lo « was transferred to the Royal Brisbane Hospital
for vascular surgical care on 1 January 2005 . I have since learned that (") ¢~ .isina
grave condition in ICU there and he has undergone an ampntation of his Jeft leg as well

as other procedures.
My concerns are with the surgeon that performed his initial 3 operations whilst in the

care of the Bundaberg Health Service, I am concerned that if the patient had been
transferred to Brisbane initially he my not of lost his leg or be in such a grave condition.

I' would like his treatment at this hospital investigated as I fear his health and well being
has been compromised by inadequate, sub standard treatment by the medical team.

Your urgent assistance in this matter is greatly appreciated.

Yours Sincer:

Michelle Hunter

(LRI b
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My name is Jenelle Joy Law. I am an Enrolled Nurse and am licenced to practice in the
state of Queensland,

I am employed by Queensland Health and work at the Bundaberg Base Hospital in the
Operating Theatres as an Enrolled Nurse Advanced Practice.

1 was rostered to work on Monday 20® December 2004 and also rostered to be on call
that same day.

This statement is regarding the death of Mr, Gerard Kemps who was operated on Monday
the 20" December and passed away the following day, Tuesday 21® December. The
procedure that he initially had performed, was a gastro-oesophagectomy. This was done
by Dr. Jay Patel.

My issues regarding this matter are with Dr. Patel hxmself [ felt his professionalism was
of a very poor standard, It began on the morning of the 20® December. I commenced my
shift and was told that the gastro-oesophagectomy case may be cancelled due to there
being no spare ventilators in the Intensive Care Unit. Dr Patel came into our tea room not
very happy and complaining, saying that one of the patients was a head injury patient and
the ventilator should be turned off, and the other was a private patient and should be sent
to Brisbane, that way he would have a ventilator for his patient and the surgery could
proceed, In a short period of time, a ventilator became available and his procedure went
ahead,

Mr. Kemps was wheeled into the operating theatre. He was a happy, easy going man,and
very pleasant to talk to. The gastro-oesophagectomy was performed, When the surgery
was finished and we were preparing to transfer Mr. Kemps, it was noted that his Bellovac
drain was filling quite rapidly. The anaesthetist, Dr Deiter Berens, asked for Dr Patel to
please come and review the patient as he was concerned about the blood loss. While I
was in the theatre Dr Kariyawasam came and saw the patient. He didn’t have any answers

for the situation, I was then asked to go for my lunch break.
By 5.30pm that same day, the theatre staff were informed that Mr. Kemps was required to

return to theatre immediately or he would die. He was bought through from the Intensive
Care Unit and a laparotomy, spleenectomy and thoracotomy was performed. The suction
unit filled very quickly once the laparotomy was started. There was 2.3 litres of blood in
the suction unit that | could visibly see. Two litres of normal saline wash was also used.
Throughout the surgery I gave the scrub nurse, Registered Nurse Katrina Zwolak, 75
large sponges and 15 raytec. There was blood and blood clots all over the floor. Dr Patel
stated a number of times, that the unexplained bleeding, had nothing to do with his
surgery that he performed that meming.

During the procedure, Dr Patel stated that this patient is going to die and was yelling at us
to get his family, The family was found and brought into the hallway of the theatres. Dr
Patel left the operating theatre while still in his scrub gear and went and spoke to them,
During the procedure Dr. Patel became anxious and agitated, and stated a few times, that
this problem, being the excessive bleeding, was not his fault and had nothing to do with
his surgery. The patient’s incisions were closed. Dressings were applied, but had to be
reinforced with combines as they continually oozed with blood. The patient was then
transferred back to the Intensive Care Unit.

1 personally found that being involved in this case was quite distressing, I fully
understand that with every operation there is a risk, but what confuses me, is that there
was no uncontrolled bleeding prior to Mr. Kemp’s first surgery, then there was massive
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bleeding afterwards. If this had nothing to do with Dr. Patel’s surgery, why did this man
start bleeding uncontrollably? Shouldn’t some sort of official inquiry be done regarding
this matter, and should Dr Patel be allowed to continue doing this type of surgery, as my
understanding is, that all of his patient’s that have had this surgery have not survived. Mr
Kemps was due to go to Brisbane to have this surgery performed. Why was this changed?
] understand that being an Enrolled Nurse I do not have a lot of the medical knowledge,
but I do have compassion for people. Why was the big rush to have this surgery
performed? Was it such of an emergency that it had to be performed before Christmas?
Could it not have waited until after Christmas, so the Kemps family could have enjoyed

Christmas together.

Jenelle Law
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DAMIEN PAauUL GADDES
REGISTERED NURSE (SINCE 1992)
BLUNDABERG BASE HOSPITAL

QUALIFICATIONS

CERTIFICATE IN NURSING 1992
SARAH KEENAN SCHODL DF NURSING
SINCE 1992 | HAVE HELD CLINICAL.
POSITIONS IN THE PER!I OPERATIVE
ENVIRONMENT.

I AM WRITING THIS STATEMENT TO VOIGE
MY CONDCERNS IN MY OPINION OF
DANGERDOWUS PRADTICE WITH DocrTor J.
PATEL (DIRECTOR OF SURGERY OF THE
BUNDARBERG BAasE HaOspPITAL.)

| ALS0O REQUEST THAT | HAVE
PROTECTION UNDER THE WHISTLE
BLOWER’S ACT 1994. MY RERUEST 15
FOR THE PURPOSE 0OF AVOIDING
BULLYING (FROM DR PATEL) AND STAFF

SPECULATION,

Y
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I BEBGAN MY SHIFT ATD730 HRS ON THE
20/12/04> THE HALF HOUR EARLY
START WAS T ACCOMMODATE
ORGANIZATION OF ALL NECESSARY
ANAESTHETIC EQUIPMENT AND S5TOCK
FOR MR G.KEMP UR ND.QO7900
SCHEDULED FOR A “GASTRO-
ESOPHAGECTOMY” VIA A ABDOMINAL AND
THORACOTOMY APPRDOACH. (IVOR-LEWIS

ESOPHAGECTOMY).

| COLLECTED THE DANGEROUS DRUG
KEYS FROM ICU AND CONVERSED WITH
THE STAFF RE THEIR READINESS FOR MR
KEMP POST OoP. MARTIN BrRENNAN (RN)
INFORMED ME THAT THEY DD NOT HAVE
THE STAFF FOR ANDTHER VENTILATED
PATIENT; AS THEY ALREADY HAD TWD
PATIENTS ON VENTILATORS. | THEN
DECIDED TO RING DR BERENS RE THE
SITUATION AND THE POSSIBILITY OF
FPOSTPONING OR CANCELLING THE CASE
DR BERENS CONCURRED WITH AND
STATED WE WDOULD POSTPDONE THE CASE;
| TOLD DR BERENS THAT | wOuLD
NOTIFY DR PATEL.

| ASKED SWITCH TO CONNECT ME TO De
PATEL’S MOBILE PHONE. | INFORMED DR
PATEL OF THE BED SITUATION IN ICU,
H1S TONE OF VOICE BECAME ANGRY. HE
THEN STATED THAT THE BRAIN-DEAD
PATIENT SHOULD HAVE HAD THE

LT
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VENTILATOR TURNED OFF AND THAT THE
OTHER PATIENT HAD PRIVATE COVER
AND COULD HAVE BEEN TRANSFERRED
TO BRISBANE. DR PATEL BEGAN TH SAY
HOW THE ICU STAFF AND DR JDOINER
WERE INTERFERING WITH HIS PLANNED
CASE THAT DAY; ALSD THAT HE wOouiLD
CLEAR THE (ICU FOR HIS PATIENT. |
INTERRUPTED DR PATEL AND EXPLAINED
THAT | WAS PASSING ON PERTINATE
INFORMATION AND THAT | WOULD NOT BE
FREPARING EXPENSIVE EQUIPMENT AND
WASTE IT UNTIL | KNEW DEFINITELY
WHETHER THE CASE WOULD BE GOING
AHEAD. DR PATEL SAID, # | KNOW THANK
YOU” AND THEN HUNIEG UP.

| CONTINUED TO PREPARE THE THEATRE
SUITE AND ANAESTHETIC EQUIPMENT TD
WHERE NO ITEMS WERE WASTED YET,
WERE AT THE READY. WE BEGAN THE
ANAESTHETIC AT APPROXIMATELY D900
HRS POST HEARING THE BRAIN-DEAD
VENTILATOR WAS SWITECHED OFF AND A
BED WAS NOW AVAILABLE.

MR KEMP RECEIVED A C.V.C, ARTERIAL
LINE, THORAGIC EPIDURAL, LEFT AND
RIGHT PERIPHERAL LINES. THE SURGICAL
CASE BEGAN AT 0952 TO 1312 HRS,
THE PROCEDURE BEGAN WITH THE
LAPAROTOMY; NOTHING | RECALL DURING
THIS PART OF THE OPERATION WAS A
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PROBLEM. WE CHANGED MR KEMP'S
FOSITION TD LATERAL AND PROCEEDED
WITH THE THORACOTOMY.
APPROXIMATELY HALF AN HOUR ON |
NOTICED THE BELLOVAD DRAIN WAS
HALF FULL WITH ND VACULM AND THE
BLODOD WAS STILL DRAINING INTD THE
BELLOVAGC. BY THAT TIME WE HAD GIVEN
THE PATIENT AT LEAST THREE UNITS OF
PACKED CELLS. DR BERENS REQUESTED
AN ARTERIAL BLODOD GAS THE HB WAS
70 G/L.. PREOPERATIVELY IT WAS 75
G/L.. | OBSERVED HIS HEART RATE WAS
CLIMBING STEADILY DURING THE CASE
AND HIS SYSTOLIC WAS CONSISTENTLY
LESS THAN 100 MMHG.

)} STATED,”DR PATEL THE BELLOVAC
DRAIN IS OVER HALF FULL WITH NO
VACUUM AND WAS STILL DRAINING
FREELY"”. DR PATEL STATED, “THAT'S
WHAT DRAINS ARE FOR DAMIEN!” DR
BERENS CONTINUED INTRAVENOUS
FLUIDS AS PER THE FLUID BALANCE AND
ANAESTHETIC RECORD SHEETS. DR
BERENS ORDERED ANDTHER ARTERIAL
BLOOD GAS POST ADDITIONAL UNITS OF
PACKED CELLS; THE PATIENT’S HB
REMAINED AT 70 3/L.

DR BERENS RELAYED THIS INFORMATION
TO DR PATEL AND HIS IMPRESSION THAT
THE PATIENT IS HAEMORRHAGING. DR
PATEL BAVE NO RESPONSE TO DR

HIHEI
8

i
QHB.0003.0002.00204




BERENS. THE DPERATION WAS COMPLETE
BAR CLOSURE AND THE BELLOVAC WAS
EMPTIED TWICE BEFORE THE COPERATIONS
END AND WAS CONTINUING TO DRAIN
BLOOD. DR PATEL HAD LEFT THE
THEATRE AND LEFT THE JUNIOR STAFF
TO CLOSE THE INCISION. DR
KARIYAWASAM WAS ASKED AFTER
APPLYING THE DRESSING TO OBTAIN DR
PATEL TD REVIEW THE FLOW FROM THE
BELLOVALC DRAIN (LAPAROTOMY) AND THE
BLOOD PRESSURE WAS LOW AND HIS
PULSE WAS ELEVATED. DR

KKARIYAWASAM RETURNED AND
INFORMED LIS DR PATEL'S ORDERS WERE

TO ADMIT THE PATIENT TO ICL. ALL
PRESENT STAFF LODKED AT EACH DTHER
AND STATEMENTS CARRIED THE THEME
THAT THE PATIENT WAS BLEEDING.
DRBERENS STATED,” THIS PATIENT WILL
BE HBACK TO THEATRE TONIGHT” | WAS
THEN INSTRUCTED TO G50 TO MY BREAK,
BY THEN THE PATIENT WAS
TRANSFERRED TO ICU.

| BEGAN MY SHIFT THE NEXT DAY
(21/12/04) AND HEARD AT
APPRDOXIMATELY 1000 HRS THAT MR
KEMP HAD DIED DUE TO LOSS OF BLODD.
IT wAS THEN | FELT | NEEDED TO LET MY

SUPERIORS KNOW MY CONCERNS.
IR
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21 October 2004

Ms Toni Hoffman

Nurse Unit Manager
Intcnsive Care Unit
Bundaberg Base Hospital
BUNDABERG QLD 4670

Good Morming Toni

As a patient advocate | feel that I must advise you of particular instances which have
come to my attention which may either;

e breach the duty of care which is owed to the patients of this hospital; and/or
e may constitute behaviour which is not of an acceptable professional standard.

On a number of occasions I have had concerns regarding Dr Patel’s indiscrete behaviour
concerning fellow colleagues and clinical management. [ have outlined below examples

of such behaviour:

1. 13 September 2004: As I left the lift towards the canteen I could hear Dr Patel
discussing a present patient of ICU around the table with junior surgical doctors. He
proceeded to say that “Dieter was being very silly about this patient and he knew what
he was doing not Dieter”. I could still hear the conversation afier leaving the canteen
and waiting back at the Iift. As I found this extremely unprofessional I reported my

concerns to Tom Hoffman and Dr Dieter Berens,

2. 25 August 2004: [ was looking after patient P 3 (post op evacuation of

haematoma), and she expressed to me her concerns of Dr Patel’s treatment. She stated
that the day before 1n Surgical Ward on Dr's rounds they had removed sutures from her
wound and tried to manually evacuate the haematoma with no local anaesthetic or pain

relief.

3. On previous occasions I have been put into the situation of Dr Patel advising
relatives that the patient’s medical condition was mmproving. A number of these
patients had been critically 1ll at the time and soon after died. This has caused a conflict

between the relatives and myself in the following manner:
e During my climcal care of the patient I bwld up a repour with the relatives;
o The relatives want me to advise them of the condition of the patient;

e I advise them 1n a honest and caring manner about their condition, even in the
event that their condition is critical and/or deteriorating;

» Dr Pate] will then advise the relatives that the patient’s condition is improving
(in a number of occasions in my opinion this clearly appears to not be the case);

eI
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Statement of Katrina Gail Zwolak employee of Bundaberg Base Hospital
Bourbong Street Bundaberg Queensland 4670 — dated 13. 01. 2005,

'am a Registered nurse licensed to practice in the state of Queensland and
have been endorsed and practicing since 2001. I am employed as a registered nurse at
the Bundaberg Base Hospital and for two years on February 17% 2005 1 will have
been working full time in the peri- operative department, performing rostered and on

call shifts in this area,

I was rostered on from § am to 4 30 pm and the on call shift for the 20% of
December 2004. I was aware on the 19® of December that the following day a gastro-
oesophagectomy case was to be performed. Upon arriving to work on the 20" of
December I was informed that this case was to be cancelled due to a lack of
ventilators being available in the Intensive Care Unit (ICU). Dr Patel entered the
theatre tea- room stating how there was a brain stem injury in ICU in which the
ventilator should be tumed off and that the private triple AAA (abdominal aortic
aneurysm) patient should be sent to Brisbane. Within a short time a ventilator became
available in ICU and the gastro- oesophagectomy case for UR 007900 proceeded.

[ was not involved in the elective procedure however I was on call this day. At
approximately 5 30 pm [ was told to set up for the return to theatre of UR 007900 for
a laparotomy. When the abdomen was re- opened blood poured out and the suction
units were rapidly filled, my scout, Enrolled Nurse Jenelle Law observed 2.3 litres of
blood in the suction units before washing with normal saline began, we then
proceeded 10 use a total of 75 sponges and 15 raytec gauze. Kidney basin afier kidney
basin was filled with blood clots as Dr Patel removed them from the abdominal
cavity, blood and blood clots ended up all over the theatre floor- it 100k an hour to

clean the theatre post surgery.

During the procedure when the bleeding could not be stopped Dr Patel was
stating loudly that “this was not from my surgery” even though no one had said that it
was from his surgery. At one point in the procedure he also began yelling “get the
family, get the family” when ICU was contacted and the family weren’t present he
continued to yell “get the family”, he also kept saying “this mans gonna die, he's
gonna die on the table™, once the family were able to be present he walked out of the
theatre in his scrub gear and spoke to them. Dr Pate! also performed a spleenectomy
and thoracotomy on UR 007900, whom ] leamed later died in ICU on the 21% of

December 2004.
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ICU ISSUES WITH VENTILATED PA TIENTS;

BBH ICU is a
Designated level one unit, capable of ventilation for short penods of time 24-48hrs.

Consistently exceed this. Can do this for short periods of time, but not longer than a few days
Level of Unit made clear to surgeons and this has appeared to distress one of the surgeons
when their patients are going to require tong term ventilation and be moved to Brsbane.
Usually the process works well except when Dr Patel's patients are involved. When Dr Patel
first came to BBH 1t was explaimed 10 him that we do not have the resources to ventilate long
term paticnts. He then stated he would “not practice medicine hke thus and would resi gn”. He
stated that he “would not transfer his patients to other hosputals™. He has consistently
denigrated the ICU and made such comments such as:

“This would not have been missed on the wards"” ( Gentamicin being written up by
physicians.)

He stated to one of the R.N's that he had “contacts” in Brishane and would use them
to block a patient being transferred Dr Patel consistently vents his frustration at the current
system by being insulting to the nurses and the ICU, He consistently talks loudly to his PHO
and JHO about “How difficult 1t is to work 1n this ICU” How backward it 1s and how it is like
working in the third world for him. He does not usually do ward rounds with the ICU
physician and this causes problems with the 1CU nursing staff when they are receiving
conflicting orders about treatment. Dr Patel will not converse with the NUM. Dr Patel has
attempted to causc conflict with the staff in ICU, By stating the NUM 1s unsupportive of her
staff.
The Director of the Unit, Dr Carter, 13 usually supportive and proactive about
transferning patients, except when Dr Patel’s patients are concemed Dr Patel ereates such an
atmosphere of fear and mtirmdation in the unit that his behaviour is rarely challenged Dr
Patel has repeatedly threatened to
A) Resign
B) Not put any elective surgery in ICU.

C) Complain to the Medical Director
D) Refuse to complain to the Medical Director any more and go “straight 10 Peter Leck™ as “]
have earned him % mullion dollars this year.”

Dr Carter has approached the NUM several times about mncreasing the Nursing FTEs so
that we can “care for Dr Patel's patients properly”. It was explained to lum that 1t s a
complicated process that requires much more than an mcrease in FTE's. We do not need more
nurses when we are acting in our designated capacity. It 1s when we consistently act outside
of this role for extended periods of time that these issues anse
. There is such a feeling of disumty in the ICU at present, it 1s upsetting to the nurses, every
time we have a patient of Dr Patels’s the staff anticipate an argument. When Dr Patel's
ventilated Patients require ongoing care or have been ventilated for longer than 24-48 hrs it
needs to be reiterated that they will need to be retneved to Brisbane afier 24-48 hrs » OF sooner
if there are two ventilators in ICU The admission and discharge policy of ICU must be

adhered to.
On several occasions when Dr Patel’s Patients have been 1n the ICU, he has refused

to transfer ius paticnt to Brisbane, even when the patients have deteriorated and have been
ICU for much longer than 24-48 hrs. He has done this when a bed has already been obtained
This has, on several occasions placed the patient n Jeopardy as they have further deteriorated

I have voiced my concern regarding the level of care required for some of Dr Patel's
patients several times. T have accompanied Dr Jon Joiner to meet with Dr Darren Keating
when the 1ssue of doing oesophagectomies has arisen in the unit

This week we had a cntically ill patent iransferred back to ICU n extremis He was
a2 46 year old male with a crush mjury to his chest, multiple # ribs and a flail segment He was
shocked, in pain, tachycardic and hypotensive. The Anaesthelist 1n charge attempted to place
an artenal line and a central hine as well as transfuse the patient. At one point the patient went
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This causes confusion and unrest for the relatives as they are told conflicting
information; and

¢ This also causes great conflict for myself as I do not know whether to be honest
with the relatives or to go along with providing an illusion that the patient’s
condition 1s improving (even if in my opinion this 1s not the case).

Please contact me if you require further explanation n relation to the above issues.

Regards
ANV Sunnann
. Karen Stumer

A
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1to ventricular standstill Dr Pate] was seen to make a cornment to another surgeen and
laugh. Dr Pate! repeatedly stated in a loud voice the comments that this patient did not need to
be transferred to Brisbane. He stated the patient did not need a thoracic surgeon He asked the
PHO “how much trauma had he done”, He went on to say “no more trauma should be done at
this hospiral, if we cannot handle 11" All of these comments were said in front of staff and
other patients. A bed was arranged at PAH, and booked at around 1430 hrs. The clinical

to Dr Gaffield that although I had heard Dr Patel say the patient did not need transfer as he
did not need a thoracic surgeon, there were other issues such as a lack of pathology and blood
bank support and the fact we did not have an intensivist or other equipment. The patient was
sent to CT and then 1t was decided 10 defimitively transfer him to Bnisbane.. There was some
delay in contacting the clmnical coordinator as they were doing a ward round. A fler about
fifteen mnutes the clinical coordinator phoned back and spoke with Dr James Boyd. This was
about 1930 hrs, 4-5 hrs post the initral confirmation of the bed being available at the P.A
Duning ths time Dr Youns had been IryIng to resuscitate the patient, imsert central and
arterzal lines, administer blood and intubate and ventilate the patient. Three ICU nurses were
involved with this patient throughout his stay. The Retrieval team arrived about 2215 and
whilst attempting to prepare the paticnt for transfer he detcriorated and died
My concerns are:

The staff'in the ICU is expected to function outside of the role ofthe
level one unit, repeatedly when the limitations of the unit are well known.

The behaviour of Dr Patel in inimidating, bullying, harassing and
insulting the staffin ICU continues,

The interference of Dr Patel with this particular patient which
delayed his transfer. ( Dr Patel was asked to review the patient). This delay may have

contributed to the outcome of thig patient,
My concern that the personal beliefs of Dr Patel concerning the

types of patients he can care for here, actually endangers the hives of the patients as these
patients that would be transferred to Bnsbane are not being transferred carly enough.
A Secondary concern of mne is the level of surgery which 15

performed that should only be performed in a tertiary hospital
~ .
I 0 O
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Page 1§

[ Peter Leck - Re: Bundaberg Director of Surgery - Dr Jay Patel

GFq

From: Peter Leck

To: Scott, John

Date: 20/01/2005 8:41.08

Subject: Re: Bundaberg Director of Surgery - Dr Jay Patel

Thanks John - have discussed matter with Gerry Fitzgerald and progress Is being made

Peter

>>> John Scott 20/01/2005 8:03:58 »>>

Hi Peter

Only just got to this now - sorry.
In the new environment of QH | would suggest you make contact with Mark Waters or John Wakefield

if Gerry Fitzgerald is not able to help quickly.
If you can't get assistance from any of them (and I'd be surprised if you couldn't) then could you please

contact me again - give me a call
Thanks
- John

>>> Peter Leck 01/13/05 10:3%am >>>

Hi John,
Sorry we have missed each other over the last week.

I was really trying to catch up about Dr Patel, our Director of Surgery, who undertook the procedure on
the 15 yo male who had initial surgery in Bundaberg and subsequently transferred to Brisbane where
he had a leg amputation. You will recall that Steve Rashford raised some concerns.

I was just wanting to flag, that | actually do have some concerns about the outcomes of some of Dr
Patel's surgery. Late last year | received some correspondence from a member of the nursing staff
outiining a number of concerns about outcomes for patients (including some deaths). This is coloured
by interpersonal conflict between Dr Patel and nursing staff - particularly in ICU.

Until the last week, my Medical Superintendent did not believe the complaints were justified and were
completely driven by the personality conflict- however he has now expressed some concern although

he still beliaves most of the issues are personality driven.

Late last year | made contact with Mark Mattiuissi for advice about who could conduct a review of the
concerns - and particularly of elective surgical ICU cases. My Med Super is keen not to have a ,
professorial "boffin" from a tertiary hospital undertake such a review for fear that they might not relate

to the "real" world demands of surgery in regional areas

Mark suggested Alan Mahoney from Redciiffe | flagged this also with Audit and Operational Review
seeking some assistance for the review. They have referred me to Gerry Fitzgerald.

Unfortunately Gerry has been away (back next week) - | was really ringing to flag this with you as I'm
becoming increasingly anxious about the need for a swift review process and wasn't sure | could wait

until next week to get something going ( now | think that this is ckay - sorry!).

A few of the nursing staff have advised that they reported the matter to the QNU before coming to
management (thankfully the QNU advised them to report to us).

Peter

.
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MEMORANDUM

-t .

Queensland
Government . 20 s 00s
Queensland Health C Onﬁden aal cng:ég%m

To: Dr Gerry Fitzgerald
Chicf Health Officer

Copies to:

From: Peter Leck, District Manager Contact No: (07 41502020
Bundaberg Health Service Fax No: 07 41502029
Subject: Staff concerns regarding outcomes for some complex surgery at Bundaberg
Hospital
File Ref:

Thank you for your offer of 17 January 2005, for your office to be involved in the review of
outcomes of some complex surgical procedures at the Bundaberg Hospital.

In late October 2004, the Nurse Umt Manager of the Intensive Care Unit, Ms Toni Hoffman,
raised concerns about the outcomes of surgery for some patients being treated by the Director of
Surgery, Dr Jay Patel Ms Hoffman also highlighted conflict between herself and Dr Patel and
suggested this conflict was repeated between Dr Patel and other medical and nursing staff.

On 22 October 2004, Ms Hoffman placed her concems in writing (Attachment 1), and provided
details of scveral patients where she had concerns about their treatment and outcomes,

After discussing the matter with both the District Director of Nursing Mrs Linda Mulligan, and

Director of Medical Services Dr Darren Keating, a decision was made (o confidentially meet with
somc medical staff in an attempt to ascertain whether there was a shared view about some surgical
outcomes, or if the allegations more reflected personal hostilities. A summary of discussions with

medical staff (Attachment 2) are attached.

Subsequently I made somc enquiries about obtaining an appropnate clinician to review the
relevant cases, and to provide advice as to whether some procedures being performed adequately

took account of the capacity of the Jocal intensive care service.

Dr Alan Maloney, an anacsthetist with infensive care cxperience at the Redeliffe/Caboolture
District Health Service was rccommended. The District Manger agreed to release Dr Mahoney to
conduct a review if required To date, Dr Mahoney has not been dircctly approached.

Some assistance for Dr Mahoney in conducting the review was sought from Audit and Operational
Review Branch The Branch indicated that as the matter was not one of official misconduct, that

your office would be best suited to assist (Attachment 3).

UL AT -
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Since the original correspondence from Ms Hoffman, several nurscs have also provided
correspondence raising their concerns. (Attachment 4). Some have sought protection under the

Whstleblowers Protection Act.

The concerns raised were briefly discussed with Dr Patel on 13 January 2005, following his return
to work from leave Subsequently Dr Patel has advised that he does not intend to extend his
contract when it expircs on 31 March 2005. Dr Patel has been employed on a contractual/locum
basis since April 2003 He had worked in the United States for many years prior to coming to

Australia.

I would be grateful for an appropriate review of the cases where concerns have been raised.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any quenes.

/ B ,) a(e&

Peter Leck
District Manager
19/01/2005
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28/3/04

REPORT ON INCIDENT ON 4-5"" MARCH BY KAY BOISEN
(BBHICU)

PATIENT: P uo

SURGEON: Dr. Patel
ANAESTHETIST: Dr. Berens
NURSE: Kay Boisen RN

Dear Toni,

On March 4%, Dr. Berens discussed with Dr. Patel, his concerns about
PO _» inmy presence. This discussion focused on the patient’s
slow improvement, his ongoing problems and current deteriorating
ventilatory status. As we had two ventilated patients in the unit, Dr,
Berens suggested that ¢ " 1 be transferred to a Brisbane ICU.
Dr. Patel stated forcefully that he was going to approach the executive
about staffing increases in the Bundaberg Base Hospital ICU, to
accommodate post-op ventilated patients, Dr. Patel considered that if the
BBHICU could not accommodate post-op ventilated patients, the hospital
“would lose a lot of money”. Dr. Patel then commented further, that he
may have to consider not operating on any patient requiring post-
operative care in this unit. Following this debate, Dr. Anderson reviewed
fuwoO  andadvised that he warranted further surgery, = @\
“was returned to theatre, the same evening.

On the 5™ March 2004, at around 4 pm, Dr. Patel reviewed ' VO O

. Dr. Berens was also in the unit at the same time. During this
ICU visit, Dr. Patel told me that he had attended a meeting with members
of the Executive, including Mr. Leck, and Ms. Hoffman. Dr, Patel stated
that despite him telling both Mr. Leck and Ms. Hoffman that the unit was
understaffed, they informed him that the unit was fully staffed, Dr, Patel
commented that *it’s not very good when you boss doesn’t support you”.
I responded that the unit was fully staffed for a Level 1 ICU, which is
only meant to cater for one ventilated patient for a duration of 24 to 48
hours. I felt as though Dr. Patel was indicating that Ms. Hoffman wasn’t
supportive of the BBHICU or the unit staff. Dr. Patel then immediately
repeated his same statement about the unit being understaffed to Dr.

Berens. Since this statement was in my presence, I reiterated the
limitations of the unit’s level 1 status, again, before Dr. Pate] left the ICU.

Y ' Iy, . .
ours sincerely / ; o

0SE
£y BOISErY, NI
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/ @ Bundaberg Health Service District

3 Adverse Event Report Form
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g Bundaberg Health Service District
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Sentinel Event Report Form
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Peritoneal Dialysis Catheter Placements - 2003

. Date Catheter { Date of Catheter Catheter . Catheter .
Patient Surgeon Placed Problem - Problem Outcome Position Infection
. o . chronic exit-site
E. Ball Patel 15/08/2003 19/08/2003 Migration Surgical intervention upwards . . -
; . fection & peritonitis
19} /02 ,m%ﬁs: "
2 D | prio t w
. } . eceased priorto | .
E. Hillyard , Patel 3/12/2003 Migration catheter repair side-upwards
Infection . . e
R. Marr Patel 30/09/2003 | 41112003 Catheter  |MRoAteated with V] 0 | o qs|  exitsite infection
- Vancomycin MRSA
Position
infection Peritonitis treated as chronic exit-site
P. Noppe Patel 19/09/2003 Catheter in-patient with IP upwards infecti i
Position AB's ntecuon serratia
E. Nagle Patel 1411172003 | 161212003 Migration mc@nm.mwmima_o: 1 side-ways
. Surgical intervention -
A Werr Patel 6/10/2003 18/11/2003 ﬂauwﬂmﬂmﬂmoﬁ Hemia repair side-ways nil to date
g performed privately

x6 Peritoneal Dialysis Catheter Placed 2003

IHHE
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« | Toni Hoffman - Re: ICU INCIDENT Page 1

1

From: Linda Mulligan
To: Toni Hoffman
Date: 26/08/2004 5:12pm
Subject; Re: ICU INCIDENT

** Confidential **

Dear Tonl-Thank you for this additionat information, 1t will be senton a part of the review of the
ncldent

I have just arrived back to the office and urgently requested information re tomorrow's case you have
outlined. | tried to call to speak to you personally, but have feft, hence this emall. Dr Keating has
sought information re the same, and has confirmed the case is not a tharacotomy {(which has been
confirmed by Martin Carter who has seen consent form), but rather a wedge resection and the plan is
for the patient to return to the Surg Ward, therefore advised suitable for this case to proceed.

it appears there Is conflicting information, which at the best of times is difficult to sort out, but aven
more so this late the night befare the surgery. This highlights to me the {ssues/strategies with
communication that you and { have discussed previously are not resolving and further action needs to
oceur.  In light of this matter not just Involving nursing | will look at proceeding to invotve others in

. discussing the issues al hand. Thanks Linda

Mrs Linda Mulligan

District Director of Nursing Sarvices
Bundaberg Haalth Sarvice

PO Box 34

Bundaberg Queensland 4670

Phone 07 4150 2025
Fax 07 4150 2029

>>> Tonl Moffrman 08/26/04 09;40am »>>»

: Dear Linda,
| am attaching the report | have written concarning the care of MR Bramich and my

concerns. MY first report was written in haste as | was asked to lodge It ASAP with DOSQU, as a
sentinal event. Two of the other staff have written reports. One has accessessed EAS , But has had
difficulty in doing s0, $0 has been using a private psycologist | have made several calls to EAS and
. none have been retumed to me, | understand they are down some staff as well.) have discussed my
concems with DR Carter. A thorocotomy Js booked for this Friday. DR Carter did ask me whether we
are comfortable caring for a thorocotomy, DR Patel assurred him the pt would not be ventilated. | am
concerned that large scale surgery is being sceduled on a Friday when over the weekend not ail

L - available staff are here.
Thanks
Tonl

Toni Hoffman NUM
Icu/ICCU

PO Box 34
Bundaberg Q 4670
Ph 07 4150 2311
fFax: 0741502318

HULERERIR N
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My name is Toni Hoffman; 1 am the Nurse Unit Manager of the Intensive care/ Coronary
Care Unit at Bundaberg Base Hospital. [ have been employed hete in this capacity since June
2000. I am a Registered Nurse, Midwife, and hold post graduate qualifications In ICU, a
Graduate Certificate in Management and a Master of Bioethics

Mr Desmond Bramich, a 55 yr old male, was admitted 10 the ICU on the 25-07-2004
after being involved in an accident where he had been pinned under a caravan when 1t shpped
He sustained a crush injury to his chest, multiple fractured ribs, a flail segment, Haemo -
pneumothorax. He was stable during his initia) stay in the ICU and was transferred to the
surgical ward at 1400. Around 1200 on the 26-07-2004, ICU} staff were notified a patient was
deteriorating on the ward and required transfer to ICU. ICU was full and 1t was necessary 10
transfer out another patient before we could accept Mr Bramich back. He returned 10 ICU at
1300 on the 26-07-04. On his return he was diaphoretic, hypotensive and tachycardic He was
complaining of extreme chest/ back pain. Dr Youms, the anacsthetist was attempting 1o
resuscitate Mr Bramich, by himself initially, as the other doctors were either busy with other
patients, Three nurses were assisting Dr Youms Blood was being dehivered, and memion
made of obtaining some platelets. Dr. Carter, Head of Anaesthetics came into the ICU at this
time and stated *if the patient is going to need blood products, he will need to be flown vul ™
We do not have access to platelets etc at BBH; at night, they necd to be obtained fron
Brisbane. .. One of the doctors rang Prince Charles Hospital, but there were no beds there The
doctor from Prince Charles later called back and stated that a bed had been obtained for My
Bramich at Princess Alexandra Hospital, This phone call was taken by me at approx 1430.
The coordinator just stated the surgeons needed to speak to each other and then the retrieval
team organised. I passed on this message to Drs Boyd, Gaffield, Warming ton and Carter The
surgeons in Bundaberg wished to do a CT prior to speaking to the surgeons in Brisbane
Meanwhile Dr Younis was still attempting 1o place a central line and an Arterial hne in the
patient. The patient went into Ventricular standstill whilst the central line was bemng inserted,
an arrest was called and some atropine given,

Dr Gaffield had brought Dr Patel into the unit to review MR Bramichs® x-rays Dr

Patel heard the patient was to be transferred to Brisbane. He stated i a very loud voice, that
the patient did not require transfer to Bnsbane. He also stated the patient did not need a
cardiothoracic surgeon, he asked the PHO, Dr Boyd, how much tranma he had done He also
stated he would “stop doing trauma here if we could not handle it | went and spoke to DR
Gaffield and voiced my concerns about the delay in getting Mt Bramich (o Brisbane | way
concemed Mr Bramich would die if we did not expedite the transfer Dr Gaffield explaned he
wished to do a CT scan so he could give a definitive handover.

In the interim, Dr Patel came inte the ICU, informed the staff he had perforated «
patient’s bowel, and required an anaesthetist, to repasr the same. Another emergency was
occurring and we did not have another anaesthetist to accompany Mr Bramuch to (1§ rang
and asked if Dr Carter could do it as the transfer was being further delayed. Dr Carter agreed,
the CT was done and Dr Gaffield stated the patient would definitely be gotng to Brisbane
The phone calls to Brisbane were made with my assistance as Dr Boyd was unsure of the
transfet procedure, We had some difficulty accessing the clinical coordinator at one point as
they were having handover and we had to make several calls through switch.

Once the clinical coordinator had spoken with  Dr Boyd and the retrieval team
were on theit way, 1 spoke with the afler-hours nurse managers, the night staffs were here and
1 felt able to leave. (I was due off'at 1630) The family had been told he was to be transferred;
Dr Boyd had spoken to them and the procedure and accommodation in Brisbane, as well as

LU
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the patient’s condition. The retrieval team arrived at 201 5, he became mereasingly unstable
and he arrested and died at 0012,

Subsequent events in refation to the transfer of the patient were bought to my
attention by the staff in the morning At some point Dr Patel changed his mind about the
patient not requiring transfer, to being far too ill to be transferred The staff involved in the
incident believe that Dr Patel impeded this patients” transfer to Brisbane. They are also
concerned about his treatment of the family. I have offered and attempied 10 access EAS for
the staff. I believe this i3 a coroner’s case, and as such, expect to be involved i the

investigation,

UL R
QHB 0003.0002 00218 _

|
!



.
B i

Statement by Karen Fox
STATEMENT OF EVENTS ON 277 JULY 2004
NAME: Karen Lynne Fox

Registared Nurse in the State of Queensland
Initially registered In NSW in 1985, registered in Queensland in 1996,
| have a Graduate Certificate in Coronary Care, Midwifery, and an Intensive Cara

Caortificate, | have worked in Critical Care since 1891,

Re: MR DESMOND BRAMICH DOB: 15/04/1948

On the 27" July 2004 | was called in to work an extra 12hr night shift. | commenced
duty at 1800hrs. On arrival in the unit the unit was a hype of activity with a number of
medical staff present, nursing staff and the NUM.

Other staff on this'shift were: RN Vivian Tapiolas, RN Daniel Aitken, RN Sandra
Sharp and a student nurse, Richard Dodsen.

| began caring for Mr Bramich at the commencement of tha shift,
Mr Bramich's family were around the badside and in the waiting room, including his

nine year old daughter.

The busyness and need to attend procadures as required did not allow for a
comprehensive nursing check of the patient or squipment,

At approximately 1930hrs we recelved a phone call from the RFDS fiight nurse. |
spoke fo her regarding Mr Bramich being transferred to Brisbane. She asked if we
had a confirmed bed, as | was unsure | enquired to the medical staff regarding this
and was informed that we did not. | relayed this information to the flight nurse who
stated that they would not comes if the bed was not confirmed. | said we would follow
it up and get back to them. This was discussed with Dr Boyd who said he would

follow It up.

The cares for Mr Bramich were undertaken by myself and RN Tapiolas, At varying
times one of us was away from the bedside obtaining blood from blood bank, making
or receiving phone calls and gathering equipment. Bramich was extremely unstable,
hypotensive and ventilated, Dr Younis was present and was ordering treatment, The
unit was busy with beds full and another ventitated patient.

Times are approximate dus to the busy nature of the events.

Dobutamine was commenced as | arrived on duty and then noradrenaliine was
commencead at approximately 2050hrs. He remained hypolensive, We commenced

fluid boluses, blood transfusion and ongoing support.

Dr Patel reviewed the patient, ordered an echocardiograph at approximately 2015hrs,
Whilst waiting for the echocardiograph Br Patel, in a very loud voice, stated that they
are too busy ventilating 80 year olds and looking after cardiac patients to care for this
patient. On the result of the echo Dr Patel instructed us to set up for a pericardial tap,
which we did. After numerous attempts under ultra sound guidance he inserted &
pericardial drain and sutured it In place. Only 3-4 mis of blood was obtained during

the procedure.

During this procedure Dr Patel was ioudly making comments that the patient will die
and does not need to go to Brisbane. | asked Dr Patel o mind what he was saying as
the family were in the hallway, Dr Patel commanted that they nead to know, | In tumn

!
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Statement by Karen Fox

commented that they need 1o be lold face to face not over hearing what was being
said behind the curtains

During the inssertion of the pericardial drain we did not have in stock all of the items
that Dr Patel was requesting, when told he repeatedly sald to get the Nurse Manger
to get them as that was her job. { phoned and spoke to the theatre staff who also

ware unsure of what Dr Pate! requirad.

Dr Patel then inserted a second chest drain, without the use of the introducer.
Continuing in a loud voice he lecturad the JHO as to why he did not use the
introducer in a chest trauma and what he may do 1o the JHO if he caught him using
ona 1n a similar situation. Dunng the insertion of the drain Dr Patel poked and
prodded using his fingers through the incision. Thera was oozing from around the

drain insartion site.

Following this Dr Patel spoke with the family, RN Tapiolas was present during the
discussion. When the family came to the bedside the wife and daughter In law were
axtremely distressed, crying loudly and speaking to the patient, Dr Pate] abruptly told
them that they were not to cry at the bedside. During this time the daughler was also

present,
A little tater a call cama from the RFDS stating that they wate on their way. Dr Carter

phoned in after this to enquire what was happening. | informed him that the retrieval
team was an the way, he then stated that therefore he wolld not need to be further

invoived,

They amived at approximately 22158hrs. Or Younis was present and handed over to
the doctor. Cares were as per the retrisval doctor’s instructions.

During the preparation for the flight Mr Bramich deteriorated blood was pulsating
from the intercostal dralin site. This was sutured by Dr Boyd. The patient continued to
detertorate and subsequently had a cardiac arest. Resuscitalion was carried out as
per orders from the flight Doctar. Dr Younls was present and assisted with the

attempt.
The fiight Doctor spoke to the family pre, during and post the arrest. | was present

when she spoke to the family during the arrest and at her request | stayed with the
family, | stayad with them until aftar she spoke with them whan resuscitation attempts

were ceased. This was at approximately 0012hrs,
Dr Boyd was also present during the arrest, and a JHO.

The family were allowed time with their loved one and offered support during this
time. They remalined with him until the police arrived at approximately 0300hrs.

1 found this night to be very distressing and upsetting. 1 found Dr Patel's
behaviour to be bullying.

Watching him do procedures was barbaric and unsightly.

| have many years experience and | have never seen a surgeon behave in
this manner befors.

2
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Statement by Karen Fox

Further to this incident was when Dr Patel took ¢ 43  toOTfor
amputation of his toes. Due to a dispute with the anaesthetist Dr Patel was
responsible for the man's pain relief. On return to the unit the nurse from the
OT stated that € w3 was In pain throughout the procedure and had
squeezed her hand until it was white.

| find Dr Patet's general manner to be intimidating, loud and often
inappropriate.

. /@?A«f‘ﬂ ,( . /(:;x )
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vivian Taplolas — Events of 27 July 2004

I was rostered in the Intensive Care Unit as a Registered Nurse for
a night shift on Tuesday 27 July 2004.

That night I was allocated to be the runner for the ventilated
patients. In total there were two that night. However, due to Mr
Bramich’s condition I was working very closely with RN K Fox and
was assisting with the care for him.

Whilst RN Fox received a handover from the Day shift Nurse I was
assisting Dr Younis’s requests with respect to treatment for Mr
Bramich. This treatment consisted of commencing an Noradrenaline
infusion, taking observations, caliing Pathology and generally
carrying out requests from Dr Younis.

Dr Patel was in and out of the intensive care unit that night as he
was requesting further treatment for Mr Bramich. At one point, Dr
Patel was greatly concerned In relation Mr Bramichs's unexplained
tachycardia and hypotension and he stated that he thought Mr
Bramich had a pericardial tamponade. Dr Patel sald that on the Cat
Scan there was a small effusion and he was geing to perform a
pericardiocentesis. Dr Patel requested various pleces of equipment
and I, together with others assisted his requests. He instructed that
the radiologist be called and to bring the image intensifer so he
could perform an echo on his heart. In following out these requests,
I was sometimes required to leave the bedside,

There was an Incredible amount of activity for this patient, and as
well as that procedure, there was a necessity to go to Blood bank,
(some distance away from intensive care) conducting and recelving
telephone calls In relation to this patient, making up infusions and
calling appropriate personnel. I only partially witnessed some of this
procedure, as Dr Patel with assistance from Dr Boyd had repeated
attempts to perform this procedure. At times I was In Blood bank
and others in Theatre trying to locate Dr Patel’s requests for

equipment.

During the procedure I heard Dr Patel say that Mr Bramich was not
going to Brisbane as he was too sick, and probably was going to
die. RN Fox Informed him to quieten down as the relatives could
hear him and he needed to speak with them. He obliged with her

request.

After Dr Patel finished the procedure, RN Fox requested I go with Dr
Younis and Dr Patel to talk with the relatives who were In the
waiting room. Dr Patel informed the relatives that Mr Bramichs’s
condition “was so critical he was going to dfe”. He informed the
relatives that “he had placed a needle around his heart and got

1
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Vivian Tapiolas — Events of 27 July 2004

back only three or four mis, so it was not compromising him at afl”.
He said his injuries were severe as his heart and lungs had been
crushed from the caravan and often these Injurles took 24 to 48
hours to surface, The relatives asked for Mr Bramichs to be sent to
Brisbane, but Dr Patel informed them that he had been a “trauma
surgeon in the United States for 10 years” and he knew that a
cardio-thoracic surgeon could not operate on him In this instance,

They were informed Mr Bramich would not survive the plane trip to
Brisbane. The relatives were visibly upset and asked " how could
this happen?”. Then they asked If there was any chance of survival.
Dr Patel replled “1% and It would be a miracle”.

After the relatlves came In to see Mr Bramich they were visibly
upset, crying loudly. Dr Patel walked over to the bedside and asked
them to be qulet as how would Mr Bramich feel if he could hear
them. Mr Bramichs’s son calmed the family down.

There was much confusion with reference to Mr Bramichs's
retrieval. I was Informed that he was not going to Brisbane, even
after recelving a telephone call from a Reglstrar in Brisbane and he
doubted if he was going to be retrieved. Then I was informed by Dr
Patel that he was not going. Then 1 was informed some minutes
iater by RN Fox that the retrieval team was on Its way from
Brisbane. After the arrival of the team and during transference of
equipment, Mr Bramich became bradycardlac and arrested. His
resuscitation Is as documented, but he unfortunately passed away.

|
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KAY BOISEN RN
ICU Bundaberg Base Hospital.
3" August 2004

Dear Ms Hoffman,

T would like to bring to your attenition an incident that occurred in the ICU
on Sunday Jst August 2004. [ was rostered and working a 0700-1930 shift
with CN Byme and RN Cree. I was assigned to nurse a ventilated patient in
bedspace 5. At approximately 0900 Dr Patel entered the unit via the door
connecting ICU and Theatre, Nurse Manager Ms J McClure and I were
standing at the end of bed 5 having discussed the full bed status of the unit.
[ was handing over the patient condition to Ms McClure.

Without preamble Dr Patel launched into a tirade “Why were there two
ventilated patients in the ICU?” “What about the policy of only having
ventilated patients for 48 hours and then moving them to Brisbane?” “[t
seems only surgical patients are transferred to Brisbane from this unit.”
“What is needed is a separate surgical unit.” Dr Patel was directing this
conversation to both Ms McClure and myself, I didn’t respond initially but
did speak up to point out to Dr Patel that the ventilated patient in Bed 5 was
only ventilated four hours previous and that the ventilated patient in Bed 8
was of much longer duration but that consultation with Brisbane doctors, \
more than once, had resulted in the decision by the Brisbane doctors that
the patient was not to be transferred. I further stated that we were, in fact,
running the unit within the management guidelines. I felt that Dr Pate] was

stating derogatory remarks against the unit as a whole and to the ICU

management team in particular.

Yours sincerely, )
@ S hovoe, , |

(I RNRRIL HE
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/RE: DR.PATEL

1 was working in ICU looking after a patient in bay seven, when Dr Patel
came over and started discussing Mr. Bramich’s autopsy results (that had
taken place that day) with me over the top of this conscious patient. He
was convinced that [ had cared for the patient and was telling me about the
results. I informed him that I did not know the patient. He then finished the
report and moved away. The problem that [ have with this is that Dr Patel
was discussing confidential patient details over the top of another patient

who was aware and no doubt concerned about her own problems without

thinking about another patient’s autopsy.

I have had found that Dr Patel is prone to be indiscreet in discussing his
personal opinions of other doctors and nursing staff (very loud). Thave
heard Dr Patel agree with the ICU consultant with regard to NG feeding a
patient who had had abdominal surgery. The next moming when he was
informed that the patient had not tolerated his NG feed, he informed me

that it was a “silly” idea of the consultants yesterday to even consider feeds

(once again very loudly).

Karen Jenner ICU

Hninanemy
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Bundaberg Hospital Commission of Inquiry

Statement of Gerard FitzGerald

Attachment GF11




GFEH

ot

Jobs for Bundaberg, Maryborough and Hervey Bay.

* | have requested infection rates, unplanned admissions to ICU, unplanned

returns lo OT - information on the way

I have requested clinical privileges details ~ information on the way

* | have asked Judith to organise a meeting room for us — done

* | have asked Judith to arrange meetings with DM, DON and DMS early on
Monday morming ~ being organised, except that the DON 15 away on Monday
14", 50 we will seg her early on Tuesday 15"

* [ have asked Judith to arrange meelings with all staff involved - elther:
individually or in small groups ~ whatever 1s appropriale - there are probably
20+ staff, so we wil see how we go

* !'have also asked Judith to discuss our visit with the DM, DON and DMS and
intended discussions with staff so that senior executives can talk to staff prior
1o interviews being arranged ~ so thal W's not a shock - more of a pleasant
surprise

* | have asked Judith to organise retrieval of medical records — if we run short
of time and need to get then photocopied so that we can bring them back

. here to ook at ~ sobe it
* | have obtained printouts from HIC - in the blue folder — will talk to you about

them on Tuesday

Gerry — :D’JW* g ~ /
Have you spoken with the zonal managers about the reviews?

Have you spoken to Mike Alsopp (DM-Fraser Coast) about the review? 7% ?Wl/f
* Have you spoken to Tony Harfington? W gl -pw o ‘ﬁg

I don't want to crganise anything for Hervey Bay/Maryborough until the appropnate
people know about the 1ssue and review.

@ Qx/éﬁw.b,« & pp ol
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Page 1 of |

Susan Jenkins
L ARSI N W

From: Susan Jenkins
To: Judith Woods

Hello, Judith
Thankyou so much for your help with all of this Here are some other raquests | wonder if 1t would be

possible to have a copy of the hospital's infection rates (by surgeon), unplanned admussions to ICU and
unplanned returns to operating theatre (by surgeon) - since the hospital ts accredited with ACHS, these may
well be routinely collecled as part of tha ACHS chinical indicator programme  If not, the data for the second
two indicators may well be coliected manually by OT and ICU and ihe infection control co-ordinator should
have the infection rates The timeframe for the data collection should be from April 2003 until as recent as
possible - depending on data collection processes Also, does the hospital have a chnical privilages process?
If so, would it be possible o obtain copies of approvals which outline the scope of practice? If it 1s possible,
then | can let you know which we would like tolook at If it 1sn't passible 1o have capres, please could these be

available for us 10 see when we make our on-site visit?

I may need to request further data - many thanks in advance for your help. | will also ask you to make
. appointments for us with various members of staff,

Kind regards,

g o
i LU o cowdendr - Jrtdi Wedd-
® howns  Ceep

L -
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Susan Jenkins - Visit to Bundaberg s

e AT N

From: Judith Woods
Ta: Susan Jenkins
Date: 1/02/2005 12:19 PM
Subject; Visit to Bundaberg

Hi Sue

As requested, | have prepared the attached list.

on 14/15 February, T have booked you into our small exec conference room. the room has network access
and there is also a phone in there, The only problem Is the Management meeting Is from 9 - 11 on Mondays,
so duting this tme, I can put you In Dt Keating's (Director of Medical Services) office if you require a room. 1

hope this s ok.

Please let me know If this Information 15 not what you are looking for.

regards
Jude

Judith Woods

Executive Support Officer
Director of Medical Services
Bundaberg Base Hospital
PH: 4150 2210

FX; 4150 2029

U
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From: Peter Leck ;

To: Bergin, Dan
Date; 21022008 7:43:08 pm
Subject: Re. Investigations

Sory Dan - [ dig Prepare a Brief over the last couple of days and it has been Submitted, along with
otheys, for your visit tomorrow.

Pater

>>> Dan Bergly 2/02/2005 1 54557 sou

Gerry,
thanks for the headsaup, Paticularly aboyt Dr Patel apoyt whom | had not been briefeq and given that |

am visiting Bundaberg tomorrow ang will be speaking with the senior medical stafy I had dready been
briefad by Fraser Coast and Steve Rashford about the Hervey Bay patient
Dan : ,

Dan Bergin
Zonal Manager
Central Zone

Phone (07) 3131 6987
Fax :(07) 3235 4384

>>> Gerry FitzGerald 2/02/2008 2:44:54 pm >on

Dan

| have heen asked by John to undertake two investigations In your zone, and | would fike to keep you
fn the Information loop Justin case you have not been Informed,

The first case Involves allegations of poor surgical Outcomes ralsed with me by Peter Leck at
Bundaberg regarding a Dr Pate) The second case involves the death during transport of g patient
from Hervey bay Hospital, Terry Hanelt has been helping with this.

We intend to travef 'to Bundaberg ang Fraser Coast o the 14th 15ty February to Interview people ang
examine relevant record. I will glve you a verbal brief on findings as soon @s possible after that
information collection exercise.

regards

Gerry

Dr Geny FieGerald
Chief Health Officer
Queenslang Health
Phone: 323 41137

Fax; 3221 75385
Emall; Gerry FltzGeraId@health.gid.gov,au
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Susan Jenkins

From: Busan Jenking

To; Judith Woods
e e - - — e —— e L
Helio, Judith
U;re 1S the fist of medical records Wewould hike 1o look at whan We come up 1o sep you on Feb 144h
num
034546
130204
e
Pras
) 59
3
g
0206;‘.(?)9
086644
}”/(, [ ﬂlbl

fre - o
P ,OZ,Yl'pR, E Nagle (“7\?3 '(had amputation of toes)
F 1 do '

007300
) ::u:f :tf:dy be further records we would Iike to ook at - will lot You know

The staff We would Jike 1o speak o are
DM, DON, DMS - firsy thing on Monday morning - either Individual
ara happy tq Start aarly .. whatever ime stils logally. we would alsq ke {o

the end of the day if Possible The othar staff are
man

yorasa group - for about half.an. hour We
alk {o the DM, DON and DMS g

Dr don Joiner
Dr Younig

Dr Miach

Dr Strahan

Dr Diater Bereng
Dr Alax Dawig
Dr Davig Risson
Ms Gal Aylmer, Ms Robyn Pollock, Mg Jenny Church, Mg Ms Michelia Hunter j
Ms Jenelle Law
Mr Damien Gaddes i
Dr Kanyawasam

Ms Katring 2wolak
Dr Carter

Dr Gaffield

Ms Karen Stumer
Ms Karen Lynne Fox
Vivian Tapiofag

Ms Kay Boisen

Ms Karen Jenner

bulit may be 5 good idea for the DON ang DMS 1o check the Jist
and see if any relevenal siaff are missing. | think Interviews of about 20 minutes shaulg pg OK - perhaps it
S 18 appropriate The DON, DMS ang NUM-1cu may be aple

1o help here - theye are quite a few staff 1o talk to, so this could be helpfy Either that, or the CHO may ses
the doctors ang | may see the nursing staff I 50, we will need two rooms We will need lo see Dr Patel on g

As we discussed lhig morning, | am not sure if staff know we arg coning, so ) wil) leave thig Matter in the
Capable hands of the DM, DON and DMs

i g gy

Hi
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Thanks once again for your help,
Sue

about:blank
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Susan Jenkins - Re: Hello, Judith,

S

From: Judith Woods

To: Susan Jenkins
Date: 4/02/2005 12:46 PM
Subject: Re: Hello, Judith,

» e —— v apmane ——— - — - n e e — — ————

Hi Sue
will get this underway

I'have a few questions for you.

Did you want to see her in the morning? or speak to her via phone In the week before. She is also away on

/When I spoke to the DON, she advised me that she will be away on 14th Feb. She will be back on 15th Feb.

¥ the Frday 11.

&/
/

also, she raised that the Nursing staff may wish to bring a support person... that could be someone from
QNU. Is this acceptable.. I know they will probably ask me this when 1 call them, so am just wanting to
make sure.... and, should a Dr want to do this, 1s that acceptable,

Two people that were not on the. list were Gail Doherty and David Levings (they are A/NUMS in Theatre) will

I put them in?
A lot of the staff listed, will probably want to meet privately, so I will see how I go.

finally.... A few of the Doctors have Jeft the Hospital.

Dr Youms - returned o/seas (will be here in May for some locum wark)

Dr Alex Davis - she has returned overseas

Dr David Risson - Not at BBH - I think he 1s still employed by QH, but not sure where? ? Wa,
Dr Kariyawasam - Not at BBH - I think he is still employed by QH, but not sure where?

sorry for all of these questions...

Jude

Judith Woods

Executive Support Officer
Director of Medical Services
Bundaberg Base Hospital
PH 4150 2210

FX 4150 2029

> 5> Susan Jenking 02/04/05 12-17pm >5 >

Hello, Judith
Here 13 the list of medical records we would like to look at when we come up to see you on Feb 14th

UR numbers

ARG BAEIEE 4
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Page 2 of 2

There may be further records we would like to look at - will et you know

The staff we wouid like to speak 1o are
DM, DON, DMS - first thing on Monday morning - either individually or as a group - for about haif-an-hour We

are happy to start early - whatever time suits locally We would also tike to talk to the DM, DON and DMS at
the end of the day if possible The other staff are
Ms Ton Hoffman
Dr Patel
Dr Jon Jomer
Dr Younis
Dr Miach
Dr Strahan
Dr Oreter Berens
Dr Alex Dayis
Dr David Risson
. Ms Gail Aylmer, Ms Robyn Pollock, Ms Jenny Church, Ms Ms Michelle Hunter
Ms Jenalle Law
Mr Damien Gaddes
Dr Kanyawasam
Ms Kalnna Zwolak
Dr Carter
Dr Gaffield
Ms Karen Stumer
Ms Karen Lynna Fox
Vivian Tapiolas
Ms Kay Boisen
Ms Karen Jenner

I think thess are all the staff we need lo see, but t may be a good 1dea for the DON and DMS to check the list
and see if any relevenat staff are missing | think intarviews of about 20 minutes should ba OK - perhaps it
may ba possible to see small groups of staff if this 18 appropriate The DON, DMS and NUM-ICU may be able
10 help here - there are quite a few siaff 10 tatk lo, 50 this could be helpful. Either that, or the CHO may see
the doctors and | may see the nursing staft If so, we will need two rooms We will need (o see Dr Patal on his

own

As we discussed this marning, | am not sure if staff know wa are coming, so | will leave this matier in the
. capable hands of the DM, DON and DMS

Thanks once again {or your help,
Sue

Susan Jenkins
Manager-Ciinical Quality Uit
Office of the Chief Health Officer
Queensland Health Building
147-163 Charlotte Street
Brisbane

Telephone 07-3405-5776

(LR }
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Susan Jenkins - info as requested

From: Judith Woods

To: Susan Jenkins; teapots@tpg. com.au
Date: 10/02/2005 4:23 PM

Subject: info as requested

- o = —— JRpu—. P— ———

Hi Sue

Sorry this Is so late.., Iam in the middle of rostering, appointments of new docs and our new call centra.,
and getting ready to go on leave next week ...
anyway, I have sent this to both your work and home address, just In case T missed you this arvy.

I have attached the hist. The green highlights are yet to be confirmed, but I think 1 have everyone. There
are 3 extra people, they were at the DON's suggestion.

. Unfortunately, I am not able to tell you who has union representation, but [ belleve the majonity of the
nursing staff will,
Peter said that he will be in early on Monday as well, so if it's not me that meets you it will be him,

‘Regards

Jude

Judith Woods

Executive Support Officer
Director of Medicat Services
Bundaberg Base Hospital
PH: 4150 2210

FX: 4150 2029

®

T ]

i
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rystal Report Viewer

Palm Beach-Currumbin Glinig, The

Peninsula Eyae Centre

Peninsula Prvate & Pine Rivers Private Hospilals
Pindara - Gold Coas! Prvate Hospital

Pindara Day Procedure Centre

Fioneer Valley Private Hospital

Pittsworth & Distnct Friendly Society Hospnal

QFG Day Theatres
Queensland Eys Centre
Rejuvenation Clime

Short Street Day Surgery

Southsitie Endoscopy Cenlre
Spendelove House

Spring Hill Chine

8t Andrew's Hospital-lpswich

St Andrew's Toowoomba Hospital

St Andrew's War Memornial Hospital-Bnsbane
St Luke's Nursing Service

St Stephen's Prvate Hospital
StVincent's Hospital - Toowoomba
Sunnybank Prvate Hospital

Sunshine Coast Day Surgery
Sunshine Coast Haematology and Oncology Chinic
Sunshine Coast Private Hospital, The
Toowong Private Hospital
Toowoormba Hospice Assoctation Inc
Townsville Day Surgery

Tn Rhosen Day Hospital

Vision Centre Day Surgery

Wesley Centre for Hyperbaric Medicine, The
Wesley Haspilal Townsvilla The
Wesley Hosprtal, The

Private/Public

Hopewell Hospice Services Inc
Noosa Hospitad, The

Public

Banana Health Service Distrct
Bayside Health Service Distngt
Bowen Health Service District
Bundaberg Health Service District

Caims Base & Gordonvals Hospials & Integrated Mental H/S

Central West Health Service Disinct

Charters Towers Health Service District

Fraser Coast Health Service District

Gladstone Health Service District

Gold Coast Hospital

Gympie Health Service District

Logan - Beaudesert Haalth Service District

Mackay Health Service Distnet

Mater Health Services - Public

Moranbah Health Service District

Mount 1sa Health Service District

Prince Charles Hospital Health Service District, The
Princess Alexandra Hospital Health Service Distrct

QEI Hospital Health Service District

Quesnsland Tubarculosis Control Centre

Reddiffe Caboofiure Health Service District

Rockhampton & Yeppoon Hospilals & Integrated Mental H/S
Royal Brsbane and Women's Hosprtal Heallh Servics Distnet
Royal Children's Hospital and Health Service Brisbane The
Sunshine Coast Health Service Distnct

Theodore Council on the Ageing

Toowoomba Health Service District

Torres Strat & Northem Penmsula Area Health Service Dist
Townsville Health Service Distnct

Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accradited
Accredited
Accredited

Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accradited
Accredied
Accredied
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accredited
Accrediied
Accredited
New Mamber *
Accredited
Accradited
Acgredited
Accradited
Accredited
Accredited

New Member *
Accredited

Accrediled
Accrediled
Accredited with HPR
Accredited
Accretited
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
Accreditad

http://www.achs.org aw/Content/Sereens/File_Download/accreditedlist him

307042007
8/022006

12/002/2005
180772006
25/08/2006
10/08/2005
810272007

Y/04/2005
2210612006
11/08/2006
6/89/2006
2210712006
127102006
16/1112006
2610412005
6/0772006
2911172006
310172008
18/09/2005
2071272005
8/05/2006
1710812006
8/0772006
1510172006
8/02/2005

22/0372006
2371012005
17/05/2006
14/06/2007
30/11/2005

©2058/2008

1471072008

3012006

18/08/2005
2000812006
24/1172005
15112006
V1072005
151072006
1400972006
81052006

H/1172005
231172006
22/02/2006
14/05/2006
3071002008
510972003

1970472006
29/01/2005
2271012005
7/05/2008

3011272007
10/06/2006
31/05/20006
22/05(2008
2910772008
9/0772005

1370712006
17/08/2008
B/1072006

17/04/2006
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Susan Jenkins - Dr Jay Patel

Page | of |

N

From: Peter Leck

To: FitzGerald, Gerry
Date: 29/03/2005 9:57 AM
Subject: Dr Jay Patel

e

Gerry - Just a note to keep you up to date.

Jay Patel is currently on stress-related sick leave. His current contract i through to 31 March. He will not
Proceed to take up the contract which was to take effect from 1 April and will return to the United States

early next week,

Peter

file://DAUSERDATAVenkinsS\Temp\GW } 00001 HTM
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| Peter Leck - Re: Cilnical Audit . . ’ -

From: Peter Leck

To: FitzGerald, Gery
Date: 8/02/2008 13:04:01
Subject; Re: Clinical Audit
Thanks Gerry,

Will do.

Peter

»>»> Gerry FitzGerald 8/02/2005 11:31:52 »>>

~ Peter,

I have reviewed all the material to date and while it is appropriate to proceed with the clinical audit it is
too early to be able to document any particular concerns regarding any individual.

To that end we would appreciate the opportunity to meet with a variety of staff including Dr Patel with a
view to idenlifying their concerns and views regarding the quality of services pravided at Bundaberg. At
this paint we will be simply collecting information and not seeking to validate or evaluate any particular

concerns raised.

Therefore it would be too early and inappropriate to raise any particular concerns with Dr Patel which
he may feel he has to respond to in particular. Should particular issues arise at any time then in the
interests of natural justice he would be given the opportunity to respond to any of those issues in

directly

Would you mind asking Dr Patel if he can spare some time to meet with me to discuss any concern he
may have. It may be appropriate to also meet with the other general surgeon if possible as well.

Regards
Gerry

Dr Gerry FitzGerald

Chief Health Officer

Queensland Health

Phone: 323 41137

Fax: 32217535

Emall: Gerry_FitzGerald@health.qld.gov au

< mmmimm
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kInquiry - Re: Review - Dr Jay Patel Page 1

From: Peter Leck

To: FitzGerald, Gerry

Date: 217106 4:50pm

Subject; Re: Review - Dr Jay Patel
Thanks Gerry.

1 will await your advice from Audit before providing any written details to Dr Patel.

Or Patel is aware that an investigation is to be conducted by yourself and Sue Jenkins and
arrangements are being made for him to be interviewad by you next week

I think it is appropriate that he be provided some details about the complaints so that he can prepare
for the interview

However | need your confirmation about what can/should be provided aspecially in light of the
Whistieblower Protection requests

Peter

>>> Gerry FitzGerald 7/02/2005 15:55:19 >>»

Hi Peter

Dr Patel is definitely entitied under the principles of natural justice to be confronted with the details of v
the complaints made against him He may not necessarily be entitied to know the ldentlty of the
complainants although we will check that out with Audit Some of the complainants have claimed
protection under whistleblowers legistation and | am unsure what that entities them to However |
believe we can achieve natural justice without disclosing identities,

You may need to outline to him that thera have been complaints and that these complaints will be the
subject of an investigation by the CHO. We may then try to put together a summary of those
complaints to present to him on the day. We will then allow him to respond further in writing should he
chose to do s0. He may decling to meet with me untll he has had the opportunity to respond to the
complaints | hope he does not do so0. Qur main intent is {o find the facts and to seek a resalution

ABAP.
Regards

Gerry

Dr Gerry FitzGerald

Chief Health Officer

Queensland Health

Phone 323 41137

Fax: 32217535

Email. Gerry FitzGerald@health.qld.gov.au

»>> Peter Leck 7/02/2005 2:35:40 pm >»>

Hi Gerry,

I'm not sure if you are aware that Dr Patel has not actually seen the allegations made against him -
although he has received verbal advice from me in broad general terms.

AHIFHURE L)

QHB.0003.0001.00011



Page 2§

# Inquiry - Re: Review - Dr Jay Patel

Please advise when/if you would like any material to be made available to him.

Thanks

Peter

cC: Keating, Darren

A
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\\ Queensland
N - Government

Queensland Health

Enquiries to: Mrs Susan Jenkins, Manager
Clinical Quality Unit, Office of the
Chief Health Officer

Telephone: (07) 3405-5776

Facsimile: (07) 3221-7535

Fite Number:

Our Ref: 0181-0345-005

Mr Jim O'Dempsey
Executive Officer ‘
Medical Board of Queensland
19" Floor Forestry House
Mary Street

BRISBANE Q 4001

Dear Jim,

I wish to formally bring to your attention and seek assessment of the performance of Dr Jayant Patel who is
the Director of Surgery at Bundaberg Hospital. Dr Patel is an ‘area of need’ registrant who was first registered
in April 2003.

In February, | was requested to undertake a clinical audit of general surglcal services, following concerns
raised by staff with the District Manager, Mr Peter Leck. Those concerns related to a perception of a higher
rate of complications from his surgery, the conduct of complex operations at the hospital which are beyond
the capability of relevant support services at Bundaberg Hospital and a tendency to retain patients for too
long at Bundaberg Hospital when optimal practice would dictate earlier referral to a facility where there is a
higher level of expertise.

There is evidence that the outcomes of those complex operations (namely cesophagectomles), were
relatively poor, with at least two of the patients dying in the immediate post-operative period. In addition, data
produced during the audit demonstrated a significantly higher rate of complications than the peer group
average, however, we have not been able fo exclude the impact of differential severlty on this complication

rate.

In addition, concerns were raised about his relationship with key members of staff, including some nursing
and some medical staff. [ think these matters would not reach a threshold for disciplinary action by the Board,
and have referred these to the District Manager to deal with.

My investigations to date have not been able to determine if Dr Patel's surgical expertise is deficient,
however, | am concerned that the judgement exercised by Dr Patel may have fallen significantly below the
standard expected. This judgement may be reflective of his decision to undertake such complex procedures
in a hospital that does not have the necessary support, and in his apparent preparedness to retain patients at
the hospital when their clinical condition may warrant transfer to a higher level facility.

I would be grateful for the Board's consideration of this matter.

Yours sincerely

Dr Gerry FitzGerald

Chief Health Officer

24/03/2005

Office Postal Phone Fax
Queensland Health GPO Box 48 (07) 322 52481 (07) 322 17535
147-163 Charlotte Street BRISBANE QLD 4001

BRISBANE QLD 4000
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Queensland

Government M E M 0 RAN D U M

Queensland Health

To: Dr Steve Buckland, Director-General
Copies io:
From: Dr Gerry FitzGerald Contact (07) 323 41137
Chief Health Officer No:
Fax No: (07) 322 17535
Subject: Clinical Audit — General Surgical Services at Bundaberg Hospital
File Ref: 0181-0345-005

In February this year | was asked to undertake a clinical audit of general surgical
services at Bundaberg Hospital. As you are aware, the events which triggered this audit
have now been the subject of questions in Parliament.

The report of the clinical audit 1s now complete and | have attached a copy to this
memorandum. There are issues which | need to bring to your attention.

There is evidence that the Director of Surgery at Bundaberg Hospital has a significantly
higher surgical complication rate than the peer group rate (Appendix 1). In addition, he
appears to have undertaken types of surgery which, in my view, are beyond the
capability of Bundaberg Hospital and possibly beyond his own skills and experience,
although his surgical competence has not been examined in detal. | believe his
judgement, both in undertaking these procedures and also delaying the transfer of
patients to a higher level facility, is below that which is expected by Queensland Health |
would recommend that these matters should be examined by the Medical Board and
have written (o the Executive Officer — Mr Jim O’'Dempsey, bringing the matter to his

attention.

The audit report also identifies that there has been a failure of systems at the hospital
which has led to a delay in the resolution of these matters. The credentials and clinical
privileges committee has nat appropriately considered or credentialled the doctor
concerned. The executive management team at the hospital does not appear to have
responded in a timely or effective manner to the concems raised by staff, some of which
were raised over 12-months ago. While the report makes a number of recommendations
for system improvements, | would recommend that some discussion should occur with
the hospital management, reminding them of their responsibilities to put such systems in
place and ensure they respond appropriately to reasonable clinical quality concerns.

Dr Gerry FitzGerald
Chief Health Officer
24/03/2005

U]
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Enquiries to: Diane Allwood
A/Executive Support Officer
Office of the Chief Health Officer

Telephone:  (07) 323 41138

Facsimile: (07)322 17535
File Number:
Our Ref:

Mz Peter Leck

District Manager

Bundaberg Hospital

Bourbong Street

BUNDABERG 4670

Dear Peter,
Please find enclosed a copy of the report of the Audit of Surgical Services at Bundaberg Hospital.

I'have also provided a copy of this report to the Director General and he has asked me to provide a
copy to you directly and, to request from you a report as to how the recommendations arising from
this report will be implemented.

I'would be grateful if you could provide me in due course with a response and an implementation
program for the recommendations arising from this report. I would be happy to assist wherever
possible in the preparation of that program. Should you require any assistance please do not hesitate
to contact me or Ms Susan Jenkins on telephone: (07) 340 55776. '

Yours Sinecetly

=S

Dr Gerry FitzGerald
Chief Health Officer
/e /oS

copy: Mr Dan Bergin, Zonal Manager, Central Zone, Citilink Precinct, 153 Campbell Street,

Bowen Hills, Q1d 4077
Ms Susan Jenkins, Manager, Clinical Quality Unit, Office of the Chief Health Officer

Office Postal Phone Fax

Queensland Health GPO Box 48 (07) 322 52481 (07) 322 17535

147-163 Charlotte Street BRISBANE QLD 4001

BRISBANE QLD 4000 AN
S
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Darren Keating . credentialiing

From: Vinod Gopalan

To; Hanelt, Terry; Kealing, Darren
Date: 15/07/2004 2 25pm

Subject: credentialing

Dear ant

Regards

vinod gopalan

Page 1 )
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APPLICATION FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES (RURAL FACILITIES & GPs)

FOR THE POSITION/S OF e
AT THLSE PUBLIC HOSPITALS  BUNDABERG/ HERVEY BAY/ MARYBOROU GH (Ixelete as appropriate)

Clinieal Privileges Requested (Specify in which areas of practice clinical privileges are sought, such as anaesthetics,
obstetrics, surgery, orthopacdics, radiography, ultrasound and give details of any subspeciality / proceduses in which

you wish o participate.}

General Practice Endoscopy 0 Upper
Note: 0 Lower
General practice tncfudes alt uther prinury care sreas including
genatncs pacdiatries, pathatin e care, amienatal ware, prychoatry internal N iver Ainne
medicine, Llosed orthopaedics mingr operatians and rathology ’ Orthopaedics Operative: Minor
(such as carpal tunnel, ganghon, tendon repair)

Anacsthetics 0 Adult Radiopranhy

0O Child 3 years and over Lcen ci \.‘; rrfbcr

0 Child 12 months and aver '
Obstetrics 0 Uncomphicated del eries Ultraseund! {indicate seope of pracuee)

0 Instrumental dehiveries T e e e

0 Cuesurean section ‘ e
Surgery Abdonunal surgery
mdicate scope of surgical procedures to be u
(indh scope of surgical procedures to be undertaken) Other (please speatly) L

Personal Details

Family name Grven name(s) -

et oot vttt ity it ot st

Business address

Posteode

Proaewddress
o o e Posteode s .
Telephone Busingss Prvate Motle
bemadaddress

Y| 0o F

Date of barth o Gender
Depree/fellowship cie University/eollege ete Y_c_a_r_o!‘gugl_xj_‘:_gg_r_lg_n_i

—r

— B — .
N

L 1

Note As theee are currently no guidelines or standards av ailable for ultcasound, ¢ gt privieges will be reviewed on the basis of epenence
ant qual fivations Medical practitioness shovdd de nonsirate doe care and dingence within the bounds of their competen.ies amf c\perience

CLMMIAL PRIVILICIS APFI U ATIONV FORM JOR UP 2 H G ainbathen agp caton i (07 dow,

¢ POATL Y 00020

W |

QHB 0003.0002.00355
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Froms Vinod Gopalan

To Darren Keating
Date: 7/01/2005 5 09pm
Subject: Re Clan Priv - Surgeons

Dear Darren

Happy New Year.

L emailed the college last month again. Agaln no response.
to do, any ideas.

Thanxs for the RACMA info so far

Xirdest Regards
vin

>>> barren Keating 01/07/05 05 02pm >»»>
Hy Vin
Happy New Year to you t!

Is there any news from RACS apout a representative for c¢lin
for surgeons 2

Regards

Darren

Dr Darren Kear:ng
D.recter of Medical Services
Bundaberg Healtn Service District

a7 4150 2210
Darren_Keating@neaith . qld.gov au

I don't know what

privileges meeting

l{IllIHI W
B.0003.0002.00348
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[ Judith Woods - Re Fwd Hello, Jugih ‘ “ " el

From: Darren Keating

To: Judith Woods

Date: 2/4/05 8 41am
Subject: Re Fwd Helio, Judith
HrJw

Re Credentals

Find altached application forms for clinical privileges, copies of recent meehngs and terms of
reference for the Commiltee.

Upon my arnval, the clinical privileges process was dormanl  The TORs were finalised in conjunction
with FCHSD, interim privileges provided for all chmcians and work begun on forming the committee
(including getting college nominations). FCHSD had this responsibility and due to resignation of the
DepDMS, this didn't get going until 2004

The RACS have been unable to provide a sutable nommnee despite ongoing contact (see attached
emails), hence surgical credentialling hasn't been completed

.' Darren

3
Al




' Bundaberg Heaith Service District
Policy & Procedure Document

| &)

Queensland

Government
Queensland Health

QHEPS No.

Title: | Credentials and Climical Privileges for Medical Officers

Manual Name & No: | No. 3 - Human Resource Management

Section: | Section 2 - Recruiiment, Selection, Appointment and Employement

Policy Number: | 32.C1
RMaralSectonNumber

Applicable to: All BHSD and FCHSD Medical Staff

Effective Date: 01 January 2003

Last Review Date: New Policy

Neoxt Review Date: 01 January 2007

Initiator: Dr. Darren Keating

Authorised:
Onginai signed by Peter Leck

\ Distrct Mannger

Description: _
Guidelnes for review of medical staff credentials

and appropriate clirrlcal privileges .

Ratified.
- Onginal signed by Cathy Fntz

Human Resourcs Manager

Originals kopt In e Ditrict Quallly #nd Decixton Support Unlt

Replaces: New Policy

Relarances:

The Prince Charles Hospital Health Sarvice District Procedure
Manual, PROPCHO00136v2

Credentials & Chnical Privileges, Guidelines for Medical
Practitioners July 2002

Queensland Health Policy » Credentals & Chuical Privileges for
Medical Practdionars

Definitions:

Credentials represents the formal qualfications,
traning, expenence and clinical competence of
the medical practiioner Documentary evidence of
credentials could Include University Degrees,
Fellowships  of Professional Colleges  or
Associations, Registration by Medical Boards,
Certificates of Service, Certifficates of completion
of specific courses, penods of verfiable formal
instruction or supervised traming, information
contained 1n confidential professional referee
reports and medical indemnity history and status

Clinical Privileges: equates to a medcal
practitioner being granted permission to provide
specified medical services within specific health
care faclities. Privieges granted to one health
care facility are not automatically transferable to
another facility. Likewise, tha extent of privileges
granted may vary from one facility to another,
dependent on resources and role delineation
between facilities.

Policy Statement

To ensure that all medical prachtioners utilising the Bundaberg and Fraser Coast Health Service District
facilities practice high quality care, the granting of clinical prvileges is only to those practtioners who ars
appropniately qualified, trained and expenenced lo undertake clinical care The two Health Services have

combined in order to make the process more impartial for those being considered for credentials and clinical
privieges and in anticipation of some clinicians being able to practice across the two health service districts.

CREDEN-1

NI AT
QHB 0003.0002.00344
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Outcome
All medical practitioners within the 8 H.5.0. and F.C HS D who are the sentor chnician for patients under

their care are appropriately quahfied, trained and axperignced in chnical care,

Interns, Junlor House Officers, Senior House Officars, Principal House
Officers, Registrars and Fellows undertaking post fellowship training do not
need to undergo the process as a Clinically Privileged practitioner will be
responsible for supervision of their clinlcal practice,

Procedure

The Directors of Medical Services BHSD and FCHSD wil convena Credentals and Privileges
Committee to undertake the review of credentials and recommend appropriate clinical privileges for:

«  Senior Medical Officers (full time and part time)

s Visiting Medical Officers

+  University Madical Staff

*  Relieving Medical Staff

»  Temporary and Emernitus appointees

»  Applications for Sentor Medical Staff pasitions .

«  Praciitioners participating in patient care in an honorary or assisting capacity.

AUTHORITY FOR GRANTING OF PRIVILEGES

The District Managers B.H.5.D. and F C H S.D. are the delegated officers with responsibility to confer clinical
privileges, afler recormmendation from the Credentials and Priviieges Committee. The District Managers may
confer p rivileges no wider than those r ecommended. I nterim pnivileges for temporary or reliaf appointees
may be approved by the Director of Medical Services of ether District Health Service, subject to confirmation

by the Credentials and Privileges Commuttea at its next meeting.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Core membership of the Committee shall comprise.-
+ Director Medical Services Bundaberg Base Hospital
+ Director Medical Services Hervey Bay Hospital
»  Madical Supenntendent Maryborough Hospital

The chair will rotate between the core membership every three years

in afl instances the Committee will also Invite input from the relevant Department Director and S pecialty
College. At the discretion of the College, this input can be either in writing or by spakesperson attendance or

by spokesperson teleconference at the mesting.

UL :
QHB0003.0002.00345 |
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CRITERIA TO BE USED IN EVALUATING CLINICAL PRIVILEGES

The Applicant
Possession of ( or ehgibilty to obtain) professional registration with the Medical Board of Queensland;

Quahfications and training appropriate to the privileges applied for;

Clinigal experience and competence in the appropnate field of expertise;
Professional “good standing” including professional ndemnity status, specialty Caollege support, professional

referae comments and peer recommendations,
Commitment to past and continuing professional education and quality assurance activities;

Physical and mental fitness o pracice.

The Health Care Fagility
Facilibes, equipment and financial resources available;

Availability of necessary support services;
Role delineation of the facility

DURATION OF PRIVILEGES AND TIMING OF REVIEW
Privilsges granted will be subject to three (3) yearly revisw, excepting-

At time of initial appoiniment, a one (1) ysar probationary review will be underiaken
Priviieges will be automatically withdrawn on termination of appontment or should appointee cease to be

legally entitled lo practice.

A review of clinical privileges granted will b e u ndertaken at the request o f the Director General,
District Manager, Director of Medical Services or Department Director. Such review Is not a
mechanism for dealing with disciplinary or other administrative matters and should only be used

when concerns are exprassad about clinical competence,

An appointee may also raquest review or extension of existing prvileges at any time.

RIGHT OF APPEAL
A practtioner, whose request for privileges has been demied, withheld or grantad n different form to that

requested, should be advised in writihg and provided with the rationale for the Committee’s recommendation.
The practitioner should also be advised of the right 1o appeal against the decision.

Such appeal should be made to the District manager within 28 days of receipt of notification of Committee
recommendation.

The appellant is required lo submit reasons as to why privileges should be reconsidered, addressing any
issues of deficiency raised by the Credentials and Privileges Commitiee.

The District Manager shall request the Credentials and Privileges Commiftes reconvene within 28 days of
appeal being recsived Credentials and Prvleges Committee shall also ivite representation from the
relevant District's Professional medical commiltee and from the relevant specialty coilege

Should the reconsidered recommendation not be accaptable to the appeliant, then that individual has the
nght 1o further appeal the decision At which point, the District Manager should refer the matter to the Chief

Haaith Officer who shall convene a Privilegas Appeals Tribunal.
LR LT
CREDEN~1 QHB.OOOS..OOUZ,OO:MS
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-t
Current Appointments (List appomtinents that will conbnue concurrently at other Gaclities. including time
commiment, )

Are you currently registered to practice m Queensland? 0O Yes g N
tf yes quote registiration number
Is your registration 0 General (3 Conditiona!

. It condinonal, under what section of the Medy al Practitoners Regusiranon Act 20017 i

Are you the subject of disuiplmany procecdings n any stdte. wrntory or country, prehiminary

Investigations, or actions that may Jead t disciphmary proceedings in relation to your practice
0 Yes J No

ay a health practitoner? |
!

Are you vocationally registered”? 0 Yes 0 No
Have you any physical or other condition that may hmit your ahility to practice? {J Yes O No !
|

H yes comment |
Refereaces™ (List nates and contact details o three profiessional teferees who can comment o your skills in the ;
areas for which youw are secking clinical privileges.) !

1 !

f

2
3

!

YPlease note that the medical supermiendent of the factin at which you are wurremly practicng andfor veur
tnmmedate supervisor will be contacted for referce comments Where relevant the applicable professional college !
will be imvited to participate in the committee mecang or provide comments writing ;
!

i

i

]

.M

Lapgree 1o abide by the pohiey and guidelines appheable to the facility o which T am applywg for chinical privileges

Signature Date ___ 1/ Il

Note '
I birstume applicants please attach copies or other evidence ol'any quahfications detarled n the apphication form ]
2 A separate typed curnculum vitae should be attached support of thrs appheation ;
3 A position description should be attached to this application ;
Thie information 15 collected for review by the relevant Queensland Health ¢redentials and climeal priviteges {

committee 10 assist i the determination of your application

CHNCAL PRIVIEIGLS APPLCATION FORM EOR 4P 5 ' HChn Prvs vew appluation foem (07s) dor
i

HEDA T D 1t 0s X0

i 1

QHB.0003.0002 00356
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APPLICATION FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES (SPECIALISTS)

FOR THE POSITION/S OF - -
AT THESE PUBLIC HOSPITALS  BUNDABERG / HERVEY BAY / MARYBOROUGH {Delete s nppropnate)

Clinical Priviteges Requested (Specify n which areds of practice climeal privileges are sought, such as famly
medicing, obstetrics, pacdiatrics, surgery, anaesthenies, medicine and give details of any subspeciality/procedures m

which you wish to participate )

Personal Details
Famly name  _ Given name(s)

Business address

— Pasteode
Private address

- Posteode _
Telephone  Bustness Private \obile

E-mail address
Daite of birth - Sex OM arF

Quabfications
Degreesfellowship ete Universityieollege ete Year of qualification

Previous Appointments (List chronologically ~ attach separate list if necessary )

CNICAL PRIVILEGEN APPLICATION FOSAS 1OR SEEE IALINDY O TXEOOIMY CONICAL PROVHEGE S New sp3icaon torm {hpcunhian) doe

PFBIA 1} QN2

I

QHB..OOD&DEZ.OOBS? ,




Current Appointments
(L 1st appointments that would continue concurrently at other health care facablies, including ime commutment )

Mo s st it (st U USUUN A T

Papers Published / Presentations / Special Interests

Are you currently registered to practice in Queensland ? 1 Yes 0 No

If yes, quote regrstration number
Hcondmonal under what section of the Medical Pracutioners Regestranon dct 20017

Have you subjected your climcal work to quality assurance mechamsme O Yes 0 No

meluding chmeal audit and peer review processes”
I yes, are you prepared 1o continue to do o7 O Yes O No
Are you the subject of disciplinary proceedings i any state, terntory or country, or
preliminary imvesugatons or actions that may lead o disciphinary proceedings 1n

relation o your practice as o health pracbtioner? 0 Yes 0O No

If'Yes comment o P

Relerences™ (List names and contact detaits of three professiona) referees who can comment on your skills i the
aregs for which you are seching clinrcal pnivileges )

! — R ——

2

3 — _— e

*Please note that the medical superoendent of the facdity at shaht you are currenthy practiong and/or your
immediate supervisor sall be contacted Jor referee comments Where relevant the applicable professional college
will be invited o participate in the commttiee meeting or provide comments i w ring

Date Y A A

Signature

Nate
I First ame applicants please attach copies ar other vvidence of any qualifications detatled n the apphication form

2 A separate typed curnculum vitae should be attached in support of this apphcation
3 A postuon deseription should be attached 1o this appiication

This information (s caliected for review by the relevant Queenstand Health credentials and clical privileges
commitee 10 assist 1n the determination of your application

CHINICA) 2 &N U TS APPLICATION 1ORM rOR SEEHUTALINIS GOINEC DMSCEHINKCAL FRIVIEEGOE S Aew applecanis fovn (Spa 138 Lo

LSPATEL St inut

BRI RREER 0 g

(HB.0003 000200358
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Bundaberg Hospital Commission of Inquiry

Statement of Gerard FitzGerald

Attachment GF17
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Queensland

Government MEMORANDUM

Queensiand Health

To: Dr Gerry Fitegerald, Chicf Health Officer
Ms Sue Jenkins, Manager, Office of the Chicf Health Office Advisory Group

Copies to:

From: Peter Leck, Distnet Manager Contact No: 07 41502020
Bundaberg Health Service District Fax No: 07 41502029
Subject; Patient Satisfaction Survey
File Ref:

Please find enclosed relevant patient satisfaction survey results for surgical services.

Press Ganey conducted a pilot survey in 2001,
Other surveys were conducted 1n 2003 and 2004

The 2003 survey shows that surgical scrvices were rated by patients as significantly higher than the
mean Bundaberg hospital score for “doctor care™. Most aspects of surgical *‘doctor care’ were
rated higher than the mean for all facilitics participating in the survey, public hospitals
pariicipating 1n the survey, and hospitals surveyed m the 101-150 bed range.

The 2004 survey showed patients rating “doctor carc” for surgical scrvices as higher than the
Bundaberg hospital mean — although the difference was not statistically significant.

No statistically significant differences were found between the results for “doctor care”, between
the 2003 and 2004 surveys. The Bundaberg Hospital scorcs were not significantly different to the
mean scores from other hospitals partictpating in the survey. However, there was a general decline

in the score when compared to 2003,

Dr Jay Patel commenced work at Bundaberg Hospital on 31 March 2003
The surveys were conducted during the following periods:

2001 01/10/2001 - 30/11/2001
2003 01/07/2003 ~31/08/2003
2004 01/07/2004 — 31/08/2004

bl d

Peter Leck
Distriet Manager
14/02/2005

UL R )
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Bundaberg Hospital Commission of Inquiry

Statement of Gerard FitzGerald

Attachment GF18




&EI1%

| Peter Leck - Re: Adverse Event forms

"Pa §§M‘!,l

From: Peter Leck

To: Raven, Leonie

Date: 2171072004 9:09:15
Subject: Re: Adverse Event forms
Thanks

Peter

>>> Leonle Raven 21/10/2004 9:07:33 >>>

Hi Peter

There was never a report put in for this perforated bowel incidence

Found the great long letter that Toni wrote about ventilated patiants, and one Incident about & wound

breakdown but the doctor involved is not named.

That's about all we have

>>> Peter Leck 5:17:03 pm 20/10/2004 >>>

l.eonie,

Can you please see me urgently relating to any adverse events concerning Dr Jay Patel.

Thanks

Peter

LT

Il
QHB.0003.0001.00061
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